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PART

Item Business

General

Lighting Science Group Corporation Lighting Science Group we us our or the Company
designs develops manufactures and markets range of lighting devices and systems that use light emitting

diodes LEDs as the light source LEDs are semiconductor devices that emit light when electric currents are

passed through them and present many advantages over traditional light sources primarily greater energy

efficiency LED technology has improved substantially over the past several years Lighting products that use

LEDs have become functionally viable economically compelling and applicable for many different uses The

market for LED-based lighting products has experienced strong growth over the past several years

We expect demand for energy efficient LED lighting products to continue to exhibit strong growth driven

by the following factors

short payback period for customers because reductions in electricity costs generally equal the initial

cost of LED lighting products in one to three years

long life of LED lighting products that last on average 50000 hours

reduced maintenance costs

public pressure for sustainable or green products

government regulations mandating the use of energy efficient lighting including the elimination of the

production of all incandescent bulbs in Europe by 2012 and in the United States by 2014

government regulations restricting the use of hazardous substances such as the mercury
contained in

fluorescent lighting products and

cash incentives and rebates available under the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 the

ARRA to promote energy efficiency and alternative energy projects in federal state and local

municipal facilities

We are focused on utilizing our engineering and design capabilities and intellectual property to develop

lighting solutions for our target markets We deliver these products to our customers through direct sales

alliances with channel partners such as original equipment manufacturers OEMs lighting designers

electrical and lighting distributors and energy service companies ESCOs

History

We were incorporated in Delaware in 1988 and our business today is the result of the combination of the

products patents intellectual property assets and businesses of four LED lighting companies Lighting

Science Group Corporation an early entrant and leader in the application of LEDs for general illumination with

white lighting iiLED Effects Inc LED Effects an established LED company specializing in custom and

architectural lighting systems iii Lighting Science Group B.V LSGBV formerly known as Lighting

Partner B.V Netherlands-based manufacturer and marketer of LED retail shop lighting and other specialty

LED lighting devices and iv Lamina Lighting Inc Lamina supplier of LED light engines and LED

modules

LED Holdings LLC Delaware limited liability company LED Holdings was formed on or about

June 2007 for the purpose of acquiring LED Effects and on June 14 2007 LED Holdings acquired 100% of

the operations and net assets of LED Effects California-based company engaged in the business of designing

developing and manufacturing LED lighting applications On October 2007 we entered into an Exchange and

Contribution Agreement the Exchange Agreement with LED Holdings pursuant to which we acquired

substantially all of the assets of LED Holdings and ii issued in exchange for these assets 2000000 shares of



our Series Preferred Stock and 15928734 shares of our common stock to LED Holdings collectively the

Acquisition As result of the Acquisition and specifically LED Holdings acquisition of approximately

70% participating interest and an 80% voting interest in the Company we became majority-owned subsidiary

of LED Holdings as of October 2007

We accounted for the Acquisition as reverse merger Accordingly for accounting and financial reporting

purposes Lighting Science Group was treated as the acquired company and LED Holdings was treated as the

acquiring company

On April 22 2008 we acquired all of the outstanding capital shares of LSGBV manufacturer providing

broad range of LED lighting devices for residential commercial and retail applications based in The

Netherlands

On July 29 2008 we acquired the net assets of Lamina New Jersey-based company engaged in the

business of developing and manufacturing light engines for use in LED lighting fixtures and applications

Following the completion of the Lamina acquisition in July 2008 we initiated reorganization effort to

integrate our acquisitions streamline our product development capability segment our product offering and

enhance our supply chain performance We also reorganized our corporate structure to eliminate unnecessary

expenses given that each of the companies we acquired had its own infrastructure assembly facilities and

administrative personnel that increased our operational and administrative expenses

In order to achieve our restructuring goals we consolidated operations and closed facilities increased

investment in research and development increased investment in engineering resources and expanded our

product line We also entered into strategic relationships to improve our supply chain functions We expect to

continue to refine our operational strategy but believe that our integration efforts have positioned us for growth

under lower cost and more efficient structure with stronger supply chain

Significant Transactions

On November 2009 we filed registration statement on Form S-i with the Securities and Exchange

Commission the SEC relating to rights offering to certain of our existing security holders the Rights

Offering Pursuant to the Rights Offering we offered 25268193 units of our securities Units at $1.006 per

Unit with each Unit consisting of one share of our Series Non-Convertible Preferred Stock and warrant

entitling the holder thereof to purchase one share of common stock for $6.00 per share subject to adjustment On

March 2010 we consummated the Rights Offering On the closing date of the Rights Offering we received

approximately $303000 from the purchase of 301268 Units

Pursuant to that certain convertible note agreement the Pegasus Convertible Note dated as of August 27

2009 between us and Pegasus Partners IV L.P Pegasus IV upon consummation of the Rights Offering

approximately $35.2 million of principal and accrued interest automatically converted into 35017667 Units

Similarly pursuant to that certain convertible note agreement the Philips Convertible Note dated as of

August 27 2009 between us and Koninklijke Philips Electronics N.y Philips upon consummation of the

Rights Offering approximately $5.4 million of principal and accrued interest automatically converted into

5330482 Units

Pursuant to the Pegasus Convertible Note we previously granted Pegasus IV or its assignees the option the

Standby Purchase Option to acquire any or all of the Units that were not subscribed for pursuant to the Rights

Offering On February 23 2010 we received $2.0 million from Pegasus IV as an advance payment for Units

pursuant to the Standby Purchase Option Notwithstanding this advance payment Pegasus IV or its assignees

may also elect to purchase additional Units pursuant to the Standby Purchase Option until April 18 2010 In

total the Standby Purchase Option provides Pegasus IV the right to purchase approximately 24966925 Units

We have been informed by Pegasus IV that Pegasus IV or its assignees currently intend to purchase all of the

remaining Units pursuant to the Standby Purchase Option We therefore expect to receive approximately $25.4



million in gross proceeds in connection with the closing of the Rights Offering excluding the amount of

principal and interest that automatically converted to Units pursuant to the terms of the Pegasus Convertible Note

and the Philips Convertible Note and the exercise of the Standby Purchase Option

Our Target Markets and Customers

We target strategic market segments where we believe the performance and cost advantages of LED lighting

devices and systems are most applicable We have coupled our product offering with what we believe are

compelling financing solutions that are designed to overcome reluctance to make capital expenditures to adopt

LED lighting Our objective is to provide customers with the highest performing LED lighting products at

lower cost than our competitors

We currently target four major market segments

Public and Private Infrastructure The public and private infrastructure market is comprised of facilities and

spaces
that are managed by government and private entities Primary lighting applications in this market are

streets and highways airports ports rail infrastructure water infrastructure and energy supply infrastructure We

believe that the North American public and private infrastructure market for lighting is large and increasingly

ready to adopt LED lighting We believe that street and highway lighting represents the largest segment within

the infrastructure market Although LED lighting sales currently represent only small part of this market we

expect substantial increase in industry-wide LED lighting sales within this market in 2010 due to customer

acceptance of the benefits of LED technology United States government stimulus initiatives and the improved

performance and lower cost of LED lighting products

Retail and Hospitality The market for lighting in the retail and hospitality environment is both large and

varied This market includes malls retail shops hotels and resorts cruise ships and restaurant owners and

operators Our product offerings for this target market focus on task lighting down lighting bay lighting cove

and display lighting accent track and spot lighting Retail lighting applications also include product-specific

display lighting that enhances the appearance of particular merchandise in addition to general illumination In

certain cases products such as clothing cosmetics food and jewelry require very specific lighting requirements

and our products are able to meet those requirements The early adopters of LED white lighting in the retail and

hospitality market were high end luxury retail stores that sought high quality lighting environment e.g design

flexibility color and form factor More recently LED display lighting has penetrated the middle-market and

department stores have utilized it for the display of items such as cosmetics shoes crystal china and jewelry

The LED lighting products we offer to the retail and hospitality market often have less than two year

payback which means the customer will see financial return of their investment in our products in the form of

lower energy costs within two years

Commercial and Industrial We have developed line of LED lamps targeted to compete with traditional

incandescent and incandescent halogen lamps We offer comprehensive range of high performance LED retrofit

lamps for traditional reflector and globe incandescent lamps such as PAR38 PAR3O PAR2O MR16 and G25

types for commercial and residential lighting applications Our LED retrofit lamps are currently sold through

multiple channels Specifically we offer our LED retrofit lamps to leading lighting companies that then resell

under their own brands in commercial markets and into retail markets such as home centers In addition our

products are also sold under the Lighting Science brand through electrical wholesalers serving the commercial

markets ESCOs and direct to retail customers

Architectural and Architainment We define architectural and architainment lighting as lighting used for

illuminating environments that emphasize aesthetics in addition to function where the integration of light

sources and architectural elements is critical Architectural and architainment lighting is used in both indoor e.g
retail and hospitality and outdoor e.g building facades bridges and historic monuments applications and can

be both functional and decorative In outdoor architectural applications where fixtures are exposed to temperature



variations our experience is that LED lighting devices perform better than traditional technologies especially in

cold temperatures LED lighting is ideal for architectural applications that require design flexibility dynamic

color and in places that are difficult to reach and maintain We believe that the LED lighting market for

architectural and art project applications is substantial and that we can expand our current business in this market

Future Applications Through our internal research and development efforts and our relationships with

channel partners universities and other entities we continuously explore additional applications for LED

lighting For instance we are currently working with others to explore the development of prototypes

for space craft lighting applications through national space agency NASA healthcare applications through

major university and its associated hospital and water purification applications through another university While

these markets are in preliminary stages of development we believe they could be substantial market

opportunities for LED lighting that are not at all or fully addressed by traditional lighting technology

Our Products

Our product line is comprised of an extensive and growing range of LED based retrofit lamps and

luminaires lighting fixtures designed and engineered for applications in the four major market segments

discussed above Our products offer several advantages over traditional light sources including lower energy

consumption longer lifetime environmental friendliness configurability small size low heat output and

durability These products can be designed into lamps and luminaires with specific light color lumen output

light distribution control features such as dimming and form factors enabling lighting application

requirements to be met precisely

LED Retrofit Lamps We offer comprehensive range of high performance and reasonably priced LED

retrofit lamps or bulbs that we believe are economically compelling replacements for traditional reflector and

globe incandescent and incandescent halogen lamps such as PAR38 PAR3O PAR2O MR16 A19 and G25

types Our range of dimmable LED retrofit lamps exhibit consistent color and deliver excellent light distribution

and brightness and are suitable for commercial and residential lighting applications We sell LED retrofit lamps

directly to end users under the Lighting Science brand and also to OEMs for resale under their respective brands

We recently previewed our new line of LED retrofit lamps at the California Governors Global Change

Summit and samples of these lamps have been provided to potential customers for their review and

consideration This new line of retrofit lamps will have substantially increased light output compared to both our

previous retrofit LED lamps and we believe the competition but they will be available at about half the cost of

other major LED retrofit lamps available from our competitors in several big box retailers For example we have

found that the current average retail prices at big box retailers for R30 and MR- 16 LED lamps are about $50

and $30 respectively Our new generation R30 and MR-16 LED lamps have about twice the lumen output but

are expected to retail at approximately half of the existing retail prices The new line of lamps is dimmable and

compatible with all dimmer types commonly available in the United States

Infrastructure We also offer line of LED luminaires or fixtures that combine energy efficiency long life

and excellent light distribution which makes them ideal for use in parking garages warehouses and

manufacturing areas Our product range includes the PROLIFIC Series Roadway Luminaire developed for use in

certain street lighting applications and the Pyramid Low Bay Flat Low Bay and BAYLUME luminaires for use

in parking garages and other area lighting The ShoeBox and WallPack LED luminaires are designed for area and

pathway and security lighting respectively The PROLIFIC Series Roadway Luminaires produce between 80 to

over 90 lumens per watt depending on the model This performance was validated by an independent testing

laboratory that is approved for LM-79 Testing for ENERGY STAR for solid state lighting by the United States

Department of Energy CALiPER program At over 80 lumens per watt we believe that the PROLIFIC Series

Roadway Luminaires deliver industry leading performance over currently available LED-based street lights

offering only 50 to 60 lumens per watt efficacy



Our products in the infrastructure market category are designed to reduce operating costs and generate

payback to the customer within two to three years depending on the application Some of our most notable

installations in 2009 include the installation of our low bay luminaires in six parking garages at Arizona State

University Tempe Campus and parking garage for American Airlines

We also recently entered into development agreement with NASA to help develop prototype and test the

next generation of solid state lighting platforms for space craft which is two year program We are also

participant in NASA grant for the study of UV LED systems in water purification which is one year program

Retail/Shop Lighting We design develop manufacture and market the SYMETRIE line of LED luminaires

for retail display applications in various profiles and lengths and in select color temperatures ranging from cool

to warm These products include our Flat Slim Round and Corner profile luminaires and we believe they are an

economically compelling alternative to traditional incandescent incandescent halogen and fluorescent lighting

technology major retail equipment company has integrated our linear LED luminaires in their shelving-

systems and sells the complete integrated system to its customers which include large national perfume and

cosmetics retailer We also manufacture and market range of LED-based spot accent recessed pendant and

track lighting such as the CYCLOS NISSI and FRAGMA luminaires for retail store applications offering

uniform illumination and an alternative to incandescent halogen lighting

Architectural Accent We offer architectural and architainment LED lighting devices including but not

limited to the Color Tile FLEXILUME XTREMETUBE High Power Linear DOTZ COOLGRTD and Flat

RGB luminaires These products help architects lighting designers and builders enhance building structures with

light color movement and video in both interior and exterior applications Our architectural accent luminaires

have been used in flagship stores for several luxury brands and can be combined with lighting systems from our

custom solutions group to produce one-of-a-kind lighting systems that transform buildings or landscapes into

works of ait

LED Light Engines and Modules We offer white light and RGB LED modules under the ATLAS and

TITAN trademarks These LED modules are used by original equipment manufacturers and lighting companies

in their LED lighting systems We also sell custom designed light engines for integration into existing light

fixtures and newly designed LED luminaires One such light engine is sold to major lamp company for resale in

the public lighting infrastructure market and another such light engine is sold to major lighting fixture company

for integration in designer lighting fixture

Custom Solutions We offer customized LED lighting systems or solutions for range of customers Our

custom design capabilities combine project management system integration and advanced control systems and

software to create desired lighting effects for architects and light designers By taking the designers lighting

vision and translating it into practical application our engineers are able to design and develop complete

system that meets specific design need and that delivers desired lighting effect Our design and development

expertise covers broad range of custom lighting systems including LED light engines for existing applications

to completely new LED lighting applications that exploit the characteristics of LEDs We believe that our custom

solutions business generates brand awareness and provides recurring source of new product development

through the research design development and engineering efforts that are typically involved in these special

projects

One of our LED custom projects the New York City Times Square New Years Eve Ball currently rests on

top of Times Square year round and changes colors/sequence through programmable control panels and

without the need to change light fixtures lenses or other devices Additional notable projects that we have

completed include

World Trade Center in New York New York

the Saks Fifth Avenue snowflake display in New York New York



the Chanel retail store in Ginza Japan

the Macys holiday façade in San Francisco California

casino project for the City of Dreams in Macau China

the Texas State Fairs Big Tex in Dallas Texas

the Shri Swaminarayan Mandir in Libum Georgia

the U.S Bank Tower in Sacramento California and

the Orange County Center for Performing Arts in Orange County California

Distribution

We deliver our products directly to certain customers and to other customers through network of electrical

wholesalers with strategically located warehouses in the United States Europe and Asia using common carriers

For other international customers we adapt our distribution methods to meet individual customer or country

requirements

Our Suppliers and Raw Materials

LEDs are the single most important component of our LED lighting devices and are also the most expensive

component We are not committed to and do not favor single source for LEDs and are therefore free to select

LEDs based on availability price and performance We presently use LEDs produced by Nichia Citizen Philips

Lumileds Osram Opto Semiconductor and various other companies We believe we have good relationships with

our LED suppliers and in general receive high level of cooperation and support from them In addition we

have entered into strategic relationships with certain key suppliers that currently give us access to next generation

LED chip technology at an early stage and at competitive price

The principal materials used in the manufacture of our LED lighting devices are LEDs circuit boards

standard electrical components such as capacitors resistors and diodes aluminum for heat sinks and structural

elements and plastics for optical elements We obtain these materials from several suppliers and in some cases

have special supply arrangements In some cases we buy completed sub-assemblies especially in the case of

electronics for power supplies that may be designed by us or by third party We continuously monitor and

evaluate alternative suppliers and materials based on numerous attributes including quality service and price

Our Assembly and Manufacturing

We assemble and manufacture our LED products both internally and through select contract manufacturers

who provide scalability best-in-class manufacturing and quality processes Our manufacturing operations for our

standard products are based in Satellite Beach Florida and our manufacturing operations for our custom products

unit are based in Rancho Cordova California Our contract manufacturers are located both in and outside the

United States and they provide the necessary facilities and labor to manufacture some of our products or

sub-assemblies of our products In the future we may rely more heavily on contract manufacturers to

manufacture our products and provide sub-assembly services and we believe we have the flexibility to shift

production among our facilities and our contract manufacturers

Intellectual Property

As of December 31 2009 we had filed 132 U.S patent applications From these applications 77 U.S

patents had been issued and 32 were pending approval When we believe it is appropriate and cost effective we

make corresponding international regional or national filings to pursue patent protection in other parts of the

world In some cases we rely on confidentiality and trade secrets to protect our innovations



We also have portfolio of registered and unregistered trademarks including LIGHTING SCIENCE
PROLIFIC LAMINA EYELEDS SPOTLED SOL TITAN TITAN TURBO ATLAS BAYLUME
FLEXILUME DOTZ COOLGR1D POWEREYE SYMETRIE CYCLOS NISSI XTREME TUBE DISCEYE

and COLOREYE

Regulations Standards Conventions

Our products are generally required to meet the electrical codes of the jurisdictions where they are sold

Meeting the codes established in the United States and Europe usually allows our products to meet the codes in

other geographic regions

Many of our customers and end users require our products to be listed by Underwriters Laboratories Inc

UL or UL Listed UL is United States independent nationally recognized testing laboratory third-party

product safety testing and certification organization UL develops standards and test procedures for products

materials components assemblies tools and equipment chiefly dealing with product safety UL evaluates

products components materials and systems for compliance to specific requirements and permits acceptable

products to carry UL certification mark as long as they remain compliant with the standards UL offers several

categories of certification Products under its listing service are said to be UL Listed identified by the

distinctive UL mark We have undertaken to have all of our products meet UL standards and be UL listed There

are alternatives to UL certifications but customers and end users tend to favor UL listing Because LED lighting

devices are relatively new in the market ULs specifications and standards for LED lighting devices such as ours

are not well established and the prior established specifications and standards for traditional lighting devices are

sometimes difficult to achieve for LED lighting devices

Certain of our products must meet industry standards such as those set by the Illuminating Engineering

Society of North America or IES and government regulations for the application For example street lights

must meet certain structural standards and must also deliver certain amount of light in certain positions relative

to the installed Luminaire In the United States WalIPack luminaires must meet standards and regulations

established in the Americans with Disabilities Act We specifically develop and engineer our products to meet

the standards and regulations applicable to the lighting applications addressed by our products

Many of our customers and end users will also expect our products to meet the applicable ENERGY STAR

requirements ENERGY STAR is an international standard for energy efficient consumer products To qualify

for ENERGY STAR certification LED lighting products must pass variety of tests to prove that the products

have certain characteristics We are striving for our products to meet the ENERGY STAR requirements and as

LED efficiency improves we believe that most of our products will meet the current requirements

Research and Development

We are dedicated to constantly improving our LED lighting devices and to developing new LED lighting

devices Our research and development team focuses on increasing performance efficiency of all system

elements including power supplies drivers and thermal management better optics and improving and

innovating control systems We work with LED chip and LED package makers to promote and drive advances in

LED package structure and phosphor application for white light devices

We have established relationships with NASA and major university and its affiliated hospital to research

the effects of light on biological systems Other areas of research include LED lighting applications to accelerate

or modify plant growth and the effects of spectral distribution on human functions including sleep patterns

visual acuity alertness and seasonal and clinical depression

During the fiscal years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 we spent approximately $1.3 million and $1.1

million respectively on research and development



Employees

As of December 31 2009 we had 91 employees in the United States and 35 employees outside the United

States primarily in our office in Goes The Netherlands We are not subject to any collective bargaining

agreements and we believe that our relationship with our employees is good

number of our employees were previously employed by leading companies in the lighting industry such

as Acuity Brands Inc Philips Lighting Osram Sylvania Inc and General Electric Company We believe that

their industry knowledge lighting application knowledge and contacts in the lighting industry are important

assets supporting our business

Item 1A Risk Factors

Risks Related to Our Business

If we are unable to manage any future growth effectively our profitability and liquidity could be

adversely affected

If we were to reach our sales goals the resulting growth is expected to place strain on our limited research

and development sales and marketing operational and administrative resources To manage any
future growth

we must continue to improve our operational and financial systems and expand train and manage our employee

base For example we need to implement new management information systems hire and train new sales

representatives and improve our supply chain management and quality control operations Additionally we need

to make additions to our operations and administrative management teams If we are unable to manage our

growth effectively we may be unable to operate profitability and we may not be able to effectively pursue our

business plan

If we are unable to increase production capacity for our products in timely manner we may incur

delays in shipment and our revenues and reputation in the marketplace could be harmed

An important part of our business strategy is the expansion of production capacity for our products We plan

to increase production capacity by increasing capacity at our Satellite Beach facility and potentially adding new

contract manufacturers or by expanding capacity with our existing contract manufacturers Our ability to

successfully increase production capacity will depend on number of factors including the following

our ability to successfully increase capacity at our Satellite Beach facility

identification and availability of appropriate and affordable contract manufacturers

ability of our current contract manufacturers to allocate more of their existing capacity to us or their

ability to add new capacity quickly

availability of critical components used in the manufacture of our products

establishment of adequate management information systems financial controls and supply chain

management and quality control procedures and

ability of our future contract manufacturers to implement our manufacturing processes

If we are unable to increase production capacity for our products in timely manner while maintaining

adequate quality we may incur delays in shipment or be unable to meet increased demand for our products which

could harm our revenues and damage our reputation and our relationships with current customers and prospective

customers

If critical components and raw materials that we utilize in our products become unavailable we may
incur delays in shipment that could damage our business

We depend on our suppliers for certain standard electronic components as well as custom components

critical to the manufacture of our lighting devices We currently rely on limited number of suppliers for LEDs



used in the production of our products We depend on our vendors to supply in timely manner critical

components in adequate quantities and consistent quality and at reasonable costs Finding suitable alternate

supply of required components that meet our strict specifications and obtaining them in needed quantities may be

time-consuming process and we may not be able to find an adequate alternative source of supply at an

acceptable cost

We are seeking to establish long-term relationships with certain key suppliers to ensure availability of key

components at favorable pricing However we currently rely on purchase orders with our suppliers rather than

long-term contracts To the extent that we do not have long term contracts we may not be able to predict with

certainty our ability to obtain components in adequate quantities and at acceptable prices when they may be

needed If we are unable to obtain components in adequate quantities we may incur delays in shipment or be

unable to meet demand for our products which could damage our reputation with customers and prospective

customers

The principal raw materials used in the manufacture of our products are LEDs variety of standard

electrical components printed circuit boards wire plastics for optics metal for housings and heat sinks From

time to time LEDs have been in short supply due to demand binning restrictions and production constraints

Any significant interruption in the supply of these raw materials could have material adverse effect upon us

The principal raw materials used in the manufacture of the LEDs used in our products are silicon wafers

gold wire lead frames and variety of packages and substrates including metal printed circuit board flex

circuits ceramic and plastic packages and phosphors From time to time particularly during periods of increased

industry-wide demand silicon wafers and other materials have been in short supply Any significant interruption

in the supply of these raw materials could have material adverse effect upon us

We rely upon key members of our management team and other key personnel and loss of key personnel

could prevent or significantly delay the achievement of our goals

Our success will depend to large extent on the abilities and continued services of key members of our

management team and other key personnel The loss of key members of our management team or other key

personnel could prevent or significantly delay the implementation of our business plan and marketing efforts If

we continue to grow we may need to add additional management and other personnel Competition for qualified

personnel in our industry is intense and our success will depend on our ability to attract and retain highly skilled

personnel Our efforts to obtain or retain such personnel may not be successful

The current economic downturn and uncertainty and turmoil in the equity and credit markets could

continue to adversely impact our clients diminish the demand for our products and harm our operations and

financial performance

The lighting markets in which we sell our LED lighting devices have experienced rapid evolution and

growth in recent years but have been negatively affected by the downturn in the general economy The current

economic downturn has harmed and could continue to harm the economic health of our clients and

consequently decrease the demand for our products particularly in the public and private infrastructure retail

and hospitality consumer and commercial and architecture and architainment markets Further certain of our

present customers and potential future customers have informed us that they may not purchase our products

unless or until they receive funds pursuant to the legislative initiatives promulgated under the ARRA The

persistence of the economic downturn also may cause reductions or elimination of utility and government energy

efficiency incentive programs used to partially fund the costs of customer projects In addition increased

competition during the current economic downturn may result in lower sales reduced likelihood of profitability

and diminished cash flow to us



We have limited amount of revenues and history of losses and may be unable to continue operations

unless we can generate sufficient operating income from the sale of our products

We have sustained operating losses since the inception of our lighting business For the years ended

December 31 2009 and 2008 we had revenues of $31.4 million and $20.8 million respectively and as of

December 31 2009 and 2008 we had accumulated deficits of $148.0 million and $99.9 million respectively

We utilize con tract manufacturers to manufacture certain of our products and any disruption in these

relationships may cause us to fail to meet our customers demands and may damage our customer

relationships

Although we assemble and manufacture certain of our products we currently depend on small number of

contract manufacturers to manufacture certain of our products at plants in various locations throughout the world

These manufacturers provide the necessary facilities and labor to manufacture our products Our reliance on

contract manufacturers involves certain risks including the following

lack of direct control over production capacity and delivery schedules

lack of direct control over quality assurance manufacturing yields and production costs and

risk of loss of inventory while in transit

If our contract manufacturers were to terminate their arrangements with us or fail to provide the required

capacity and quality on timely basis we would experience delays in the manufacture and shipment of our

products until alternative manufacturing services could be contracted or internal manufacturing processes could

be implemented To qualify new contract manufacturer familiarize it with our products quality standards and

other requirements and commence volume production may be costly and time-consuming process If we are

required or choose to change contract manufacturers for any reason our revenue gross margins and customer

relationships could be adversely affected

We assemble and manufacture certain of our products and our sales results of operations and reputation

could be materitilly adversely affected if there is disruption at our assembly and manufacturing facilities

We currently have one main assembly and manufacturing facility located in Satellite Beach Florida and

custom product and project assembly and manufacturing facility located in Rancho Cordova California The

operation of these facilities involves many risks including equipment failures natural disasters industrial

accidents power outages and other business interruptions Although we carry business interruption insurance and

third-party liability insurance to cover claims in respect of personal injury or property or environmental damage

arising from accidents on our properties or relating to our operations our existing insurance coverage may not be

sufficient to cover all risks associated with our business As result we may be required to pay for financial and

other losses damages and liabilities including those caused by natural disasters and other events beyond our

control out of our own funds which could have material adverse effect on our business financial condition and

results of operations Additionally any interruption in our ability to affect the assembly manufacture or

distribution of our products could result in lost sales limited revenue growth and damage to our reputation in the

market all of which would adversely affect our business

Since inception we have not achieved profita bility and it is difficult to evaluate the likelihood that we will

achieve or maintain profitability in the future Therefore if we are unable to obtain sufficient capital when

needed our business andfuture prospects will be adversely affected and we could be forced to suspend or

discontinue operations

On an annual basis our operations have not generated positive cash flow since our inception and we have

funded our operations primarily through the issuance of common and preferred stock and debt We have recently

made the transition from development stage company to one that is focusing on sales and growth in the lighting
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industry As we concentrate on commercializing our products our limited operating history makes an evaluation

of our future prospects difficult The actual amount of funds that we will need to meet our operating needs during

the next twelve months will be determined by number of factors many of which are beyond our control These

factors include the timing and volume of sales transactions the success of our marketing strategy market

acceptance of our products the success of our manufacturing and research and development efforts including

any unanticipated delays the costs and timing of obtaining new patent rights enforcing our existing patents

potential infringement claims regulatory changes competition technological developments in the market

evolving industry standards and the amount of working capital investments we are required to make

Our ability to continue to operate until our cash flow from operations turns positive may depend on our

ability to continue to raise funds through public or private sales of shares of our capital stock or through debt We

currently have line of credit with the Bank of Montreal BMO short- and long-term debt facilities with ABN
AMRO that provide up to 300000 and working capital facility with IFN Finance that provides up to 4.0

million Our line of credit with BMO matures on written demand by BMO but in no event later than August 24

2010 On March 15 2010 we amended our Loan Agreement with BMO to increase the size of our line of credit

with BMO from $20 million to $25 million As of March 19 2010 the balance outstanding on the BMO loan

was $20.4 million Our short- and long-term debt facilities with ABN AMRO originally were scheduled to

mature on January 2010 and January 2014 respectively However due to the fact that we were in default on

our solvency ratio covenant with respect to each of these facilities as of November 30 2009 we renegotiated the

terms of our debt with ABN AMRO Pursuant to the new terms of our agreement the maturity date is

December 15 2010 for both facilities Further we have agreed to reduce the principal amount outstanding on

these facilities on monthly basis until maturity The working capital facility with IFN Finance matures on

November 14 2010 Other than these facilities we do not have any committed sources of outside capital at this

time

The current worldwide economic downturn has significantly reduced access to capital and credit markets

and it is uncertain whether we will be able to obtain outside capital when we need it or on terms that would be

acceptable to us In the past we have primarily relied on and currently rely on financing or guaranties from

related parties principally Pegasus IV There are no assurances that such related parties will continue to provide

financing on terms that are acceptable to us or at all If we raise funds by selling additional shares of our common

stock or securities convertible or exercisable into our common stock the ownership interest of our existing

stockholders will be diluted If we are unable to obtain sufficient outside capital when needed our business and

future prospects will be adversely affected and we could be forced to suspend or discontinue operations

Our products may contain defects that could reduce sales or result in claims against us

Despite testing by us and our customers defects have been and could be found in the future in our existing

or future products This could result in among other things delay in the recognition or loss of revenues loss of

market share or failure to achieve market acceptance These defects may cause us to incur significant warranty

support and repair costs divert the attention of our engineering personnel from our product development efforts

and harm our relationships with customers and our reputation in the marketplace These problems could result in

the delay or loss of market acceptance of our products and would likely harm our business Defects integration

issues or other performance problems in our products could also result in personal injury or financial or other

damages to our customers for which they might seek legal recourse against us product liability claim brought

against us even if unsuccessful would likely be time consuming and costly to defend

If our developed technology does not achieve market acceptance prospects for our growth and

profitability would be limited

Our future success depends on market acceptance of our LED technology Potential customers may be

reluctant to adopt LED lighting as an alternative to traditional lighting technology because of its higher initial

cost or perceived risks relating to its novelty reliability usefulness light quality and cost-effectiveness when

compared to other established lighting sources available in the market If acceptance of LED lighting in general
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and of our LED lighting devices in particular does not continue to grow within the high performance lighting

markets that we serve and in the markets that we intend to serve through future customers then opportunities to

increase our revenues and operate profitably may be limited Our business strategy includes penetration of the

general lighting market with our lighting products Failure to obtain and incorporate into our products on

timely basis LEDs with satisfactory performance quality and cost characteristics could delay our introduction of

new products or reduce the attractiveness to potential customers of our products in the general lighting market

If we are not able to compete effectively against larger lighting manufacturers with greater resources our

prospects for future success will be jeopardized

In the lighting markets in which we sell our lighting devices we compete with lighting products utilizing

traditional lighting technology provided by many vendors In addition we face competition from number of

manufacturers including manufacturers of traditional lighting equipment that have developed one or more LED

products Some of our competitors particularly those that offer traditional lighting products are larger

companies with greater resources to devote to research and development manufacturing and marketing

To the extent that we seek to introduce LED products such as retrofit bulbs and lamps for standard fixtures

for use in general lighting applications we expect to encounter competition from large established companies in

the general lighting industry such as General Electric Matsushita Osram Sylvania and Philips Lighting each of

which has we believe undertaken initiatives to develop LED technology as well as other
energy

efficient

lighting products These companies have global marketing capabilities and substantially greater resources to

devote to research and development and other aspects of the development manufacture and marketing of LED

systems than we have We anticipate the possibility that larger LED manufacturers including those that currently

supply us with LEDs may seek to compete with us by introducing more complete systems or fixtures that do not

infringe upon our patents We may be unable to compete successfully in such markets against these or future

competitors

We are subject to legal political and economic risks abroad

As result of our acquisition of LSGBV and other international affiliates our financial condition and

operating results could be significantly affected by risks associated with international activities including

economic and labor conditions political instability laws including U.S taxes on foreign subsidiaries changes

in the value of the U.S dollar versus foreign currencies differing business cultures and foreign regulations that

may conflict with domestic regulations

We believe that there are many barriers and risks to operating successfully in the international marketplace

including the following

intellectual property protection risks

employment law risks

differing contracting process including the ability to enforce agreements

foreign currency risks

increased dependence on foreign manufacturers shippers and distributors

compliance with multiple conflicting and changing governmental laws and regulations and

import and export restrictions and tariffs

Failure to maintain effective internal controls could have material adverse effect on our operations and

our stock price

We are subject to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act which requires an annual management assessment

of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting Effective internal controls are necessary for
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us to produce reliable financial reports If as result of deficiencies in our internal controls we cannot provide

reliable financial reports our business decision
process may be adversely affected our business and operating

results could be harmed investors could lose confidence in our reported financial information and the price of

our stock could decrease

During the evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures for the years ended December 31 2009 and

2008 we concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective in reaching reasonable level

of assurance of achieving managements desired controls and procedures objectives in our internal control over

financial reporting There is no guarantee that we will be able to resolve these material weaknesses or avoid other

material weaknesses in the future

Risks Related to Intellectual Property

If we are unable to respond effectively as new lighting technologies and market trends emerge our

competitive position and our ability to generate revenues and profits may be harmed

To be successful we must keep pace with rapid changes in lighting technology changing customer

requirements new product introductions by competitors and evolving industry standards any of which could

render our existing products obsolete if we fail to respond in timely manner For example if new LED devices

are introduced that can be controlled by methods not covered by our proprietary technology or if effective new

sources of light other than solid-state devices are discovered our current products and technology could become

less competitive or obsolete If others develop innovative proprietary lighting technology that is superior to ours

or if we fail to accurately anticipate technology and market trends and respond on timely basis with our own

innovations our competitive position may be harmed and we may not achieve sufficient growth in our revenues

to attain or sustain profitability

If we are unable to obtain and protect our intellectual property rights our ability to commercialize our

products could be substantkilly limited

As of December 31 2009 we had filed 132 U.S patent applications From these applications 77 U.S

patents had been issued and 32 were pending approval When we believe it is appropriate and cost effective we

make corresponding international regional or national filings to pursue patent protection in other parts of the

world Patent applications filed by us or by others under which we have rights may not result in patents being

issued in the United States or foreign countries Because our patent position involves complex legal technical

and factual questions the issuance scope validity and enforceability of our patents cannot be predicted with

certainty Competitors may develop products similar to our products that do not conflict with our patent rights

Others may challenge our patents and as result our patents could be narrowed or invalidated

In some cases we may rely on trade secrets to protect our innovations There can be no assurance that trade

secrets will be established that secrecy obligations will be honored or that others will not independently develop

similar or superior technology

In addition our technology or products may inadvertently infringe on patents or rights owned by others and

licenses might not be available to us on reasonable or acceptable terms or at all Litigation of intellectual property

rights can be complex costly protracted and highly disruptive to our business operations by diverting the

attention and energies of our management and key technical personnel which could severely harm our business

Plaintiffs in intellectual property cases often seek injunctive relief Any intellectual property litigation could be

harmful to our business and we may not be able to afford the legal costs associated with defending against

claim of infringement or enforcing any of our patents

13



Risks Related to Our Common Stock

Because our stock price is volatile it can be difficult for stockholders to predict the value of our shares at

any given time

The price of our common stock has been and may continue to be volatile which makes it difficult for

stockholders to assess or predict the value of their shares In the last two completed fiscal years the price of our

common stock has ranged from $0.15 to $10.20 variety of factors may affect the market price of our common

stock including but not limited to

changes in expectations as to our future financial performance

announcements of technological innovations or new products by us or our competitors

announcements by us or our competitors of significant contracts acquisitions strategic partnerships

joint ventures or capital commitments

changes in laws and government regulations

developments concerning our proprietary rights

public perception relating to the commercial value or reliability of any of our lighting products

future sales of our common stock or issues of other equity securities convertible into or exercisable for

the purchase of common stock

our involvement in litigation

the acquisition or divestiture by LED Holdings Pegasus 1V or their affiliates of part or all of their

respective holdings and

general stock market conditions

Two related stockholders and certain of their affiliates collectively beneficially own sign ificant portion

of our outstanding common stock and are able to heavily influence our actions

As of March 2010 LED Holdings Pegasus 1V and certain of their affiliates collectively beneficially

owned 85193923 shares of our common stock which represented approximately 87.1% of our common stock

Due to the significant amount of voting power collectively held by LED Holdings Pegasus IV and their

affiliates they have the ability to greatly influence the election of our board of directors and to approve or

disapprove all other matters requiring the vote of stockholders

Trading in our common stock is sporadic and an established trading market may not be developed or

sustained

Our shares do not at this time qualify for listing on any
national securities exchange and we cannot assure

you that our shares will ever be listed on national securities exchange Prior to the close of trading on May 18

2009 our shares were traded on the OTC Bulletin Board After the close of trading on May 18 2009 our

common stock was removed from the OTC Bulletin Board because we had not filed our 2008 Form 10-K by that

date Our common stock is currently traded in the pink sheets centralized quotation service maintained by Pink

OTC Markets Inc that collects and publishes market maker quotes for over-the-counter securities Although our

common stock is quoted in the pink sheets regular trading market for the securities may not be sustained in the

future Quotes for stocks listed in the pink sheets generally are not listed in the financial sections of newspapers

and newspapers and other media sources often devote very little coverage to stocks quoted solely in the pink

sheets Accordingly prices for and coverage of securities quoted solely in the pink sheets may be difficult to

obtain In addition stocks quoted solely in the pink sheets tend to have limited number of market makers and

larger spread between the bid and ask prices than those listed on the NYSE NYSE Amex or The Nasdaq Stock

Market All of these factors may cause holders of our common stock to be unable to resell their securities at any

price This limited trading also could decrease or eliminate our ability to raise additional funds through issuances

of our securities
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The holders of certain of our outstanding warrants have anti-dilution protection that may have an

adverse impact on the market value of our common stock and our ability to raise additional financing

The holders of certain of our outstanding warrants presently have anti-dilution protection For instance the

number of shares of common stock into which certain of our outstanding warrants are exercisable and the

exercise price of such warrants may be adjusted in certain cases if we issue shares of common stock at price per

share that is less than the exercise price of such warrants This may prove hindrance to our efforts to raise

future equity and debt funding and the exercise of such rights will dilute the percentage ownership interest of our

stockholders and will dilute the value of their stock

At its current levels our common stock is considered penny stock and may be difficult to sell

SEC regulations generally define penny stock to be an equity security that has market price of less

than $5.00 per share or an exercise price of less than $5.00 per share subject to specific exemptions The market

price of our common stock currently is less than $5.00 per share and therefore is designated as penny stock

according to SEC rules This designation requires any broker or dealer selling these securities to disclose certain

information concerning the transaction obtain written agreement from the purchaser and determine that the

purchaser is reasonably suitable to purchase the securities These rules may restrict the ability or willingness of

brokers or dealers to sell our common stock and may affect the ability or willingness of investors to buy or sell

our shares

Because we have never paid dividends on our common stock and have no plans to do so the only return

on an investment in our common stock will come from any increase in the value of the common stock

Since beginning our current business we have not paid cash dividends on our common stock and do not

intend to pay cash dividends in the foreseeable future Rather we currently intend to retain future earnings if

any to finance operations and expand our business Therefore any return on an investment in our common stock

would come only from an increase in the value of our common stock

Because there is apotentialfor significant future dilution of our existing stockholders their percentage

ownership and control over company matters could be reduced

Currently we are authorized to issue up to 400000000 shares of our common stock As of March 31 2010

there were 30549679 shares of our common stock outstanding and we were obligated to issue up to an

additional 21940139 shares of our common stock to the holders of our outstanding 6% Convertible Preferred

Stock Series Preferred Stock warrants for the purchase of common stock and stock options The authorized

but unissued shares of common stock may be issued by us in such transactions and at such times as our board of

directors considers appropriate whether in public or private offerings as stock splits or dividends or in

connection with mergers and acquisitions or otherwise Any such issuance that is not made solely to all then-

existing common stockholders proportionate to their interests as in stock dividend or stock split will result in

dilution to each stockholder by reducing his or her percentage ownership of the total outstanding shares

Item Properties

Our principal executive office finance and accounting research design and development operations and

certain of our assembly and manufacturing operations are located at 1227 South Patrick Drive Building 2A
Satellite Beach Florida 32937 Our telephone number at our principal executive offices is 321 779-5520 Our

custom solutions business unit is based in Rancho Cordova California Our European operations are based in

Goes The Netherlands and we also maintain sales offices in Japan the United Kingdom and Australia
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We currently occupy leased office and industrial space in the following locations

Location Estimated Monthly Rental Cost Expiration date

Satellite Beach Florida $31100 September 2012

Rancho Cordova California $15000 August 2012

Goes The Netherlands $11000 November 2011

Tokyo Japan 7000 January 2011

Castle Hill Australia 3000 October 2011

Item Legal Proceedings

On Deceniber 23 2009 we filed complaint in the United States District Court for the District of New

Jersey against Schahl LED Lighting GMIBH Co KG f/k/a Richard Schahl GMBH Co KG and Richard

Schahl GMBH Co KG collectively Schahl Our complaint alleges that Schahl has breached two

distributor agreements that we acquired from Lamina in June 2008 We are seeking monetary relief from Schahl

of approximately $400000 plus costs and attorneys fees Schahl has moved to dismiss the action on

jurisdictional grounds and we are in the process of opposing that motion We accepted the return of some

products previously delivered to Schahl and we issued credit notes to Schahl for those products The amount

remaining unpaid by Schahl and which we are seeking in the action is approximately $280000 and we will

amend our complaint in due course

From time to time we may become involved in various lawsuits and legal proceedings which arise in the

ordinary course of business However litigation is subject to inherent uncertainties and an adverse result in these

or other matters may arise from time to time that may harm our business We are currently not aware of any such

legal proceedings or claims that we believe will have material adverse effect on our business financial

condition or operating results
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PART II

Item Market for Registrants Conmion Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of

Equity Securities

Prior to the close of trading on May 18 2009 our common stock was traded over the counter on the OTC

Bulletin Board under the symbol LSCG.OB After the close of trading on May 18 2009 our common stock

was removed from the OTC Bulletin Board because we had not filed our 2008 Form 10-K by that date Our

common stock is currently traded in the pink sheets centralized quotation service maintained by Pink OTC

Markets Inc that collects and publishes market maker quotes for over-the-counter securities Our trading symbol

in the pink sheets is LSCG.PK The pink sheets is limited and sporadic trading market

The following table sets forth the range of high and low bid information for our common stock for the

periods indicated below The price information available reflects inter-dealer prices without retail mark-up

mark-down or commission and may not represent actual transactions

Common Stock

HIGH LOW

2009

Fourth Quarter 1.90 $0.76

Third Quarter 1.00 $0.35

Second Quarter 0.90 $0.40

First Quarter 0.90 $0.52

2008

Fourth Quarter 3.30 $0.36

Third Quarter 5.30 $1.65

Second Quarter 7.20 $4.80

First Quarter $10.20 $2.85

As of March 31 2010 there were 30549679 shares of common stock outstanding including 675833

shares of restricted common stock that have voting rights but are not defined as outstanding under generally

accepted accounting principles and held of record by approximately 350 holders inclusive of those brokerage

firms clearing houses banks and other nominee holders holding common stock for clients with each such

nominee being considered as one holder

The last reported sales price of our common stock in the pink sheets on March 31 2010 was $0.81 per share

We have not paid cash dividends on our common stock We currently intend to retain future earnings if any

to finance operations and expand our business and therefore do not expect to pay any dividends on our common

stock in the foreseeable future

Employee Benefit Plans

Amended and Restated Equity-Based Compensation Plan

On July 2005 our board of directors adopted the Lighting Science Group Corporation 2005 Equity-Based

Incentive Compensation Plan the 2005 Plan and proposal to implement such plan was approved at the

annual stockholders meeting in August 2005 In April 2008 our board of directors amended restated and

renamed the Amended and Restated Equity-Based Compensation Plan the Amended and Restated Plan and

proposal to approve the Amended and Restated Plan was approved at the annual stockholders meeting in

October 2008 On August 31 2009 the board of directors approved an amendment to the Amended and Restated

Plan that increased the total number of shares of common stock available for issuance under the Amended

and Restated Plan from 5000000 shares to 20000000 shares all of which may be granted as incentive stock

options and ii provided that individuals may receive awards relating to maximum of 2500000 shares of
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common stock per fiscal year instead of maximum of 500000 shares as provided in the Amended and Restated

Plan The board of directors intends to submit this amendment to the Amended and Restated Plan to the

Companys stockholders at its next annual meeting

Awards granted under the Amended and Restated Plan may include incentive stock options which are

qualified under Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code the Code stock options other than incentive stock

options which are not qualified under Section 422 of the Code stock appreciation rights restricted stock

phantom stock bonus stock and awards in lieu of obligations dividend equivalents and other stock-based

awards Awards may be granted to employees members of the board of directors and consultants The Amended

and Restated Plan is administered by the Compensation Committee of the board of directors Vesting periods and

terms for awards are determined by the plan administrator The exercise price of each stock option or stock

appreciation right is equal to or greater than the market price of our common stock on the date of grant and no

stock option or stock appreciation right granted may have term in excess of ten years

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

On December 23 2008 our board of directors adopted the Lighting Science Group Corporation 2008

Employee Stock Purchase Program the 2008 ESPP The purpose of the 2008 ESPP is to provide means

through which employees conveniently may purchase shares of common stock on an after-tax basis through

payroll deductions All Company employees are eligible to participate All amounts credited to participants

account during each payroll period are automatically used to purchase whole share based on the fair market

value of the common stock on the date the shares are purchased There is currently no limit on the number of

shares that may be purchased under the 2008 ESPP The Company may also make discretionary contribution of

up to twenty percent 20% of the amount deducted from participating employees compensation during each

payroll period up to maximum of ten percent 10% of the employees before-tax compensation Any amount

in participants account not sufficient to purchase whole share of common stock is either credited back to the

participants account for use in purchasing shares during future payroll period or if the participant is not

participant for the next payroll period or if the participant so elects refunded to the participant as soon as

administratively practicable The following table sets forth information as of December 31 2009 with respect to

compensation plans under which shares of our common stock may be issued

Number of

Number of Weighted- Securities

Securities to be Average Remaining
Issued Upon Exercise Price Available for

Exercise of of Future

Outstanding Outstanding Issuance Under

Options Options Equity

Warrants and Warrants and Compensation

Rights Rights Plans

Equity Compensation Plans Approved by Security

HoldersAmended and Restated Plan 10079001 1.54 9920999

Equity Compensation Plans Not Approved by Security

Holders 2008 Employee Stock Purchase Plan 8108 $0.74

Represents shares of common stock issued pursuant to the 2008 ESPP

Represents the average purchase price for shares issued pursuant to the 2008 ESPP

There is currently no limit on the number of shares of common stock that may be issued pursuant to the

2008 ESPP

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

On November 14 2009 we issued total of 185983 shares of common stock to our seven outside directors

in private placement for settlement of $20000 due to each director as compensation for services as director

for the third quarter of 2009 This consideration was based on the average closing price of the stock for the period
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beginning September 2009 and ending September 30 2009 These shares were issued pursuant to an

exemption from registration for transactions not involving public offering under Section 42 of the Securities

Act of 1933 as amended the Securities Act

On March 2010 we issued 35017667 Units to Pegasus IV pursuant to the conversion of the

outstanding principal and accrued interest balances on the Pegasus Convertible Note and ii5330482 Units to

Koninklijke Philips Electronics N.y pursuant to the conversion of the outstanding principal and accrued interest

balances on the Philips Convertible Note These Units were issued pursuant to an exemption from registration for

transaction not involving public offering under Section 42 of the Securities Act

During the three months ended December 31 2009 we issued 5707 shares of common stock to employees

under the 2008 ESPP at prices ranging from $0.43 to $1.44 per share These shares were issued pursuant to an

exemption from registration for transactions not involving public offering under Section 42 of the Securities

Act
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Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS REGARDING FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report contains certain forward-looking statements regarding managements plans and

objectives for future operations including plans and objectives relating to our marketing efforts and future

economic performance Any statement in this Annual Report and in the documents incorporated by reference into

this Annual Report that is not statement of an historical fact constitutes forward-looking statement

Further when we use the words may expect anticipate plan believe seek estimate

intend and similarwords we intend to identify statements and expressions that may be forward-looking

statements We believe it is important to communicate certain of our expectations to our investors The forward-

looking statements and associated risks set forth in this Annual Report include or relate to among other things

our ability to compete effectively in the lighting industry our growth and operational strategies the

anticipated proceeds to be received by us in conjunction with our recently completed rights offering

anticipated trends in our industry our ability to obtain and retain sufficient capital for future operations

our anticipated needs for working capital our anticipated release of new products expectations

regarding financial or other market conditions anticipated changes in our revenues or earnings and the

successful remediation of any breaches under our credit facilities These statements may be found under

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITIONAND RESULTS OF

OPERATIONS and DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS as well as in this Annual Report generally Actual events

or results may dffer materially from those discussed in forward-looking statements as result of various factors

including without limitation the risks outlined under RISK FACTORS and matters described in this Annual

Report generally

Overview

We research design develop manufacture and market range of lighting devices and systems that use light

emitting diodes LEDs as the light source As compared to traditional lighting devices and systems our LED

lighting devices and systems some of which are patented and patent-pending are engineered to enhance lighting

performance reduce energy consumption increase product life lower maintenance costs expand design

flexibility and reduce the use of hazardous materials We specialize in the integration of power supplies thermal

management technology optics and controls around LED chips to produce lamps and fixtures that demonstrate

strong performance in terms of light quality light output and lamp lifetime and at competitive price

We source our LED chips from number of major suppliers and are continuously seeking to develop key

strategic relationships with preferred vendors that provide us with advance access to new developments in chip

technology and advantageous pricing We believe that by being agnostic as to which LED chip we use in our

products we have developed competitive advantage relative to vertically integrated LED lighting companies

and those companies without strong relationships with major chip manufacturers

Our revenues are primarily derived from sales of the LED devices and systems described above Although

our financial results are mainly dependent on the level of selling general and administrative compensation and

other operating expenses our financial results have also been dependent on the level of market adoption of LED

technology as well as general economic conditions

Lighting products remained relatively static for 50 years until recently when lighting became one of the last

major markets to be transformed substantially by new technology Because LED technology remains an

emerging and expensive technology that has only recently become more economically viable market adoption

has been slow Given the current economic downturn liquidity has been constrained forcing institutions and

individuals to substantially reduce capital spending to focus only on critical path expenditures LED lighting

products have been discretionary rather than mandatory investment and as result sales of our devices and

systems have been negatively impacted We believe that as the global economy grows and provides institutions

and individuals with greater liquidity sales of our devices and systems will increase
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Increased market awareness of the benefits of LED lighting increasing energy prices and the social

movement influencing individuals and institutions towards greater investment in energy-efficient products and

services will have we believe an increasingly positive impact on our sales in the future Additionally we intend

to utilize our strategic partnerships to help us reduce the component and production costs of our devices and

systems in order to offer them at competitive prices Further we believe our ability to provide attractive

financing options to our clients with respect to the purchase of our devices and systems will positively affect our

sales Similar to many manufacturing companies we expect to benefit from economies of scale meaning that as

unit sales increase our cost of production per unit should decrease which would positively impact our financial

results

In 2009 we attracted and retained more than 30 professionals for Finance Customer Service Engineering

Research and Development and Supply Chain management Many of the noted professionals have significant

experience in the lighting industry The education experience and skills of those professionals had an immediate

positive effect on our operations summary of some of the hiring activity includes

six research and development professionals including one Ph.D in nuclear engineering who was

previously Director Applied Technology Directorate at the Kennedy Space Center and second

engineer who holds Doctorate of Philosophy in Engineering and Applied Science and
possesses many

years of experience in both academic and research environments as well as four electrical and

mechanical engineers all to support our research and development activities which are important for

establishing and maintaining technological leadership

nine experienced electrical/electronic engineers and mechanical engineers to support our expanded

product development activities

five finance and accounting professionals including three certified public accountants to support more

robust finance and accounting function and

managers for quality assurance material control and customer service to strengthen our supply chain

infrastructure

History

We were incorporated in Delaware in 1988 and our business today is the result of the combination of the

products patents intellectual property assets and businesses of four LED lighting companies Lighting

Science Group Corporation an early entrant and leader in the application of LEDs for general illumination with

white lighting iiLED Effects Inc LED Effects an established LED company specializing in custom and

architectural lighting systems iii Lighting Science Group B.V LSGBV formerly known as Lighting

Partner B.V Netherlands based manufacturer and marketer of LED shop lighting and other specialty LED

lighting devices and iv Lamina Lighting Inc Lamina supplier of LED light engines and LED modules

LED Holdings LLC Delaware limited liability company LED Holdings was formed on or about June

2007 for the purpose of acquiring LED Effects and on June 14 2007 LED Holdings acquired 100% of the

operations and net assets of LED Effects California-based company engaged in the business of designing

developing and manufacturing LED lighting applications

On October 2007 we entered into an Exchange and Contribution Agreement the Exchange

Agreement with LED Holdings pursuant to which we acquired substantially all of the assets of LED

Holdings and ii issued in exchange for these assets 2000000 shares of our Series Preferred Stock and

15928734 shares of our common stock to LED Holdings collectively the Acquisition As result of the

Acquisition and specifically LED Holdings acquisition of approximately 70% participating interest and an

80% voting interest in the Company we became majority-owned subsidiary of LED Holdings as of October

2007

We accounted for the Acquisition as reverse merger Accordingly for accounting and financial reporting

purposes Lighting Science Group was treated as the acquired company and LED Holdings was treated as the

acquiring company
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Recent Events

Pegasus Convertible Note

On May 15 2009 we entered into Convertible Note Agreement the Original Pegasus Convertible Note
with Pegasus IV which provided us with approximately $31.7 million Specifically pursuant to the Original

Pegasus Convertible Note we borrowed approximately $13.2 million on May 15 2009 and approximately $18.5

million on May 26 2009 The proceeds of the borrowings on the Original Pegasus Convertible Note were

generally used to pay in full approximately $11.5 million worth of promissory notes previously granted to

Pegasus IV together with accrued interest thereon and to pay outstanding principal amounts under our line of

credit with BMO Effective as of July 31 2009 we entered into the First Amendment to the Convertible Note

Agreement pursuant to which the maturity date of the Original Pegasus Convertible Note was extended

On August 27 2009 the Original Pegasus Convertible Note as amended was terminated and we entered

into the Pegasus Convertible Note in the principal amount of approximately $32.8 million which represented the

outstanding principal and accrued interest on the Original Pegasus Convertible Note as of August 27 2009 As

with the Original Pegasus Convertible Note interest on the Pegasus Convertible Note accrued at the rate of

14% per annum The outstanding principal and interest was scheduled to mature upon the earlier of July 31

2010 and the date of the consummation of the Rights Offering As result of our consummation of the Rights

Offering on March 2010 approximately $35.2 million of principal and accrued interest on the Pegasus

Convertible Note automatically converted into 35017667 Units of our securities

Philips Settlement

On August 27 2009 we LED Holdings LED Effects Pegasus Capital and Pegasus IV together with

Pegasus Capital the Pegasus Group on the one hand entered into that certain Governing Agreement and

Complete Releases the Release Agreement with Philips Philips Electronics North America Corporation

PENAC and Philips Solid-State Lighting Solutions Inc PSSLS and together with Philips and PENAC
the Philips Group on the other hand We had previously been involved in patent infringement litigation with

the Philips Group since February 19 2008 the Patent Litigation

Pursuant to the Release Agreement the parties agreed to dismiss all pending litigation among and between

them Specifically we LED Holdings LED Effects and the Pegasus Group on the one hand and the Philips

Group on the other hand agreed to terminate all claims and disputes among them relating to any matter or

occurrence including but not limited to all claims and disputes arising out of or related to the Patent Litigation

and arising out of or related to any agreements or contracts entered into among the parties prior to the date of the

Release Agreement the Prior Agreements Pursuant to the Release Agreement the parties agreed that certain

of the Prior Agreements will remain in full force and effect and that others will be terminated or will expire in

accordance with their terms The Philips Group released us LED Holdings LED Effects and the Pegasus Group

from any liability stemming from the Patent Litigation and the Prior Agreements and we LED Holdings LED
Effects and the Pegasus Group each released the Philips Group from

any liability relating to the Patent Litigation

and the Prior Agreements

In connection with the Release Agreement on August 27 2009 we entered into Commercial Framework

Agreement with Philips Lighting B.V Philips Lighting an affiliate of the entities in the Philips Group

pursuant to which we and Philips Lighting agreed to buy and sell LED lighting products to each other Also in

connection with the Release Agreement we and Philips entered into Patent License Agreement pursuant to

which Philips granted us royalty-bearing license to the patents in the Philips LED-based Luminaires and

Retrofit Bulbs licensing program

Philips Convertible Note

In connection with the Release Agreement Philips also made limited equity investment in us pursuant to

the Philips Convertible Note
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In accordance with the Philips Convertible Note we borrowed $5.0 million from Philips Interest on any

outstanding principal balance under the Philips Convertible Note accrued at the rate of 14% per annum All

principal and interest on the Philips Convertible Note was scheduled to mature on the earliest of the following

three dates July 31 2010 the date of the consummation of the Rights Offering or the first business

day immediately following the date on which we notified Philips that Pegasus IV has voluntarily converted the

outstanding principal and interest under the Pegasus Convertible Note As result of our consummation of the

Rights Offering on March 2010 approximately $5.4 million of principal and accrued interest on the Philips

Convertible Note automatically converted into 5330482 Units of our securities

Rights Offering

On November 2009 we filed registration statement on Form S-I with the SEC relating to Rights

Offering to certain of our existing security holders Pursuant to the Rights Offering we offered 25268193 Units

of our securities at $1 .006
per Unit with each Unit consisting of one share of our Series Non-Convertible

Preferred Stock and warrant entitling the holder thereof to purchase one share of common stock for $6.00 per

share On March 2010 we consummated the Rights Offering On the closing date of the Rights Offering we

received approximately $303000 from the purchase of 301268 Units

Pursuant to the Pegasus Convertible Note we previously granted Pegasus IV or its assignees the option the

Standby Purchase Option to acquire any or all of the Units that were not subscribed for pursuant to the Rights

Offering On February 23 2010 we received $2.0 million from Pegasus IV as an advance payment for Units

pursuant to the Standby Purchase Option Notwithstanding this advance payment Pegasus IV or its assignees may

also elect to purchase additional Units pursuant to the Standby Purchase Option until April 18 2010 In total the

Standby Purchase Option provides Pegasus IV the right to purchase approximately 24966925 Units In an

amendment to Schedule 13D that was filed by Pegasus IV and its affiliates on March 2010 Pegasus IV

disclosed that Pegasus IV or its assignees currently intend to purchase all of the remaining Units pursuant to the

Standby Purchase Option We therefore expect to receive approximately $25.4 millionin gross proceeds in

connection with the closing of the Rights Offering excluding the amount of principal and interest that automatically

converted to Units pursuant to the terms of the Pegasus Convertible Note and the Philips Convertible Note and the

exercise of the Standby Purchase Option

Bank of Montreal BMO Line of Credit

On August 24 2009 we amended the Loan Authorization Agreement with BMO dated July 25 2008 the

Loan Agreement to extend the maturity date of the Loan Agreement until August 24 2010 in the event that

BMO does not make prior written demand On the same date and in conjunction with the amendment to the Loan

Agreement we entered into Guaranty Extension Agreement the Original Guaranty Extension Agreement

with Pegasus IV pursuant to which Pegasus IV agreed to extend its Guaranty of the amounts outstanding under

the Loan Agreement through August 24 2010 As consideration for extending the Guaranty we agreed to pay

Pegasus IV fee the Fee payable upon the earliest to occur of the Maturity Date the date of

termination of the amended Loan Agreement the date of termination of the Guaranty and change of

control of the Company each of and Fee Payment Date In accordance with the Original

Guaranty Extension Agreement if the Fee Payment Date is the Maturity Date the date of termination of the

Loan Agreement or the date of termination of the Guaranty we must pay
Fee the Average Daily Balance

Fee equal to 15% on an annualized basis of our average daily loan balance with BMO If the Fee Payment

Date is the date of change of control of the Company we must pay Fee equal to the greater of Average

Daily Balance Fee and 1.0% on an annualized basis of the total transaction consideration received by the

Company upon such change of control

On March 15 2010 we entered into third amendment to the BMO Loan Agreement which increased the

size of our line of credit with BMO from $20 million to $25 million On the same date and in connection with the
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third amendment Pegasus IV executed Guarantors Acknowledgement and Consent the Guaranty Consent

pursuant to which Pegasus IV agreed to increase its Guaranty of our obligations pursuant to the amended Loan

Agreement

In conjunction with the third amendment and as consideration for Pegasus Ws execution of the Guaranty

Consent we amended and restated the Original Guaranty Extension Agreement with Pegasus IV and entered into

the Amended and Restated Guaranty Extension Agreement dated as of March 15 2010 the Amended Guaranty

Extension Agreement Pursuant to the Amended Guaranty Extension Agreement we agreed that the fee

payable pursuant to the Original Guaranty Extension Agreement would take into account any borrowings made

pursuant to the loan increase We further agreed that to the extent Pegasus IV or its assignees fully exercised the

Standby Purchase Option and purchased all of the Units that were not subscribed for pursuant to the Rights

Offering we would apply all of the proceeds received upon exercise of the Standby Purchase Option to reduce

the principal amount outstanding pursuant to the amended Loan Agreement with BMO In addition we agreed

we would take commercially reasonable efforts to amend the Guaranty and the amended Loan Agreement such

amendment collectively the Fourth Amendment to reduce the total amount of the Guaranty required by

the amended Loan Agreement from $25 million to $10 million and extend the stated maturity date of the

amended Loan Agreement from August 24 2010 to the first anniversary of the effective date of the Fourth

Amendment the Fourth Amendment Maturity Date Until the Fourth Amendment has been executed by the

parties thereto the Company would not make any borrowings pursuant to the amended Loan Agreement without

the prior consent of Pegasus IV

The Amended Guaranty Extension Agreement amends the definition of Fee Payment Date to provide that

the Fee will also be payable upon the effective date of the Fourth Amendment In addition upon execution of the

Fourth Amendment and as consideration for further extending the Guaranty we agreed that we would pay

Pegasus IV fee the Fourth AmendmentFee payable upon the earliest to occur of the Fourth Amendment

Maturity Date the date of termination of the amended Loan Agreement as amended pursuant to the Fourth

Amendment the date of termination of the Guaranty and change of control of the Company each of

and Fourth Amendment Fee Payment Date The Fourth Amendment Fee would be equal to

the sum of 10% on an annualized basis beginning on the first calendar day immediately following the

effective date of the Fourth Amendment of the Companys average daily loan balance with BMO plus ii 10%

on an annualized basis of the maximum amount of loans available pursuant to the amended Loan Agreement

as amended pursuant to the Fourth Amendment from the period begiirning on the 121st day after the effective

date of the Fourth Amendment and ending on the Fourth Amendment Fee Payment Date this portion ii of the

Fourth Amendment Fee is referred to as the Maximum Loan Fee Pegasus IV and the Company agreed that if

the Guaranty were terminated on or before the 120th day after the effective date of the Fourth Amendment the

Maximum Loan Fee would be equal to $0.00

The Amended Guaranty Extension Agreement further provides that we would issue Units to Pegasus IV in

satisfaction of the Fee and the Fourth Amendment Fee if applicable Pegasus IV would be entitled to receive

that number of Units equal to one Unit for each $1 .006 of the Fee or the Fourth Amendment Fee as applicable

Such Units would be in addition to any Units issued pursuant to the Rights Offering or the Standby Purchase

Option

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and consolidated results of operations are based upon

our consolidated financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles in the United States of America GAAP The preparation of our consolidated financial

statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets liabilities

revenue and
expenses

and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities On an on-going basis we

evaluate our estimates based upon historical experience and various other assumptions that we believe to be

24



reasonable under the circumstances the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying

values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources Our actual results may differ from

these estimates

critical accounting policy is defined as one that is both material to the presentation of our financial

statements and requires management to make difficult subjective or complex judgments that could have

material effect on our financial condition and results of operations Specifically critical accounting estimates

have the following attributes we are required to make assumptions about matters that are highly uncertain at

the time of the estimate and ii different estimates we could reasonably have used or changes in the estimate

that are reasonably likely to occur would have material effect on our financial condition or results of

operations

Estimates and assumptions about future events and their effects cannot be determined with certainty We

base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions believed to be applicable and

reasonable under the circumstances These estimates may change as new events occur as additional information

is obtained and as our operating environment changes These changes have historically been minor and have been

included in the financial statements as soon as they became known We believe the following critical accounting

policies reflect our more significant estimates and assumptions used in the preparation of our financial

statements

Accounts Receivable

We record accounts receivable at the invoiced amount when our products are shipped to customers or upon

the completion of specific milestone billing requirements The allowance for doubtful accounts is our best

estimate of probable credit losses in our existing accounts receivable We review our allowance for doubtful

accounts on quarterly basis Past due balances over 90 days and customer specific information is reviewed for

collectability We write off accounts receivable when it becomes apparent based upon age or customer

circumstances that such amounts will not be collected Recovery of bad debt amounts previously written off is

recorded as reduction of bad debt expense in the period the payment is collected Generally we do not require

collateral for our accounts receivable

Inventories

Inventories which consist of raw materials and components work-in-process and finished lighting products

are stated at the lower of cost or market Cost is primarily determined using weighted average method Slow

product adoption rapid technological changes and new product introductions and enhancements could result in

excess or obsolete inventory We evaluate inventory levels and expected usage on periodic basis based upon

business trends to specifically identify obsolete slow-moving or non-salable inventory The change in the

provision during the period is recorded as an operating expense in the Consolidated Statement of Operations

Revenue Recognition

Product sales are recorded when the products are shipped and title passes to customers Where sales of

product are subject to certain customer acceptance terms revenue from the sale is recognized once these terms

have been met We recognize revenue on our custom design projects using the completed contract method

Revenue is recognized upon substantial completion and acceptance by the customer of each project Amounts

received as deposits against future completion of projects are recorded as unearned revenue until such projects

are completed and title passes to the customer
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Product Warranties

We provide limited warranty covering defective materials and workmanship The estimated costs related

to warranties are accrued at the time products are sold based on various factors including our stated warranty

policies and practices the historical frequency of claims and the cost to replace or repair the products under

warranty

Income taxes

We employ the asset and liability method in accounting for income taxes Under this method deferred tax

assets and liabilities are determined based on temporary differences between the financial reporting and tax bases

of assets and liabilities and net operating loss carryforwards and are measured using enacted tax rates and laws

that are expected to be in effect when the differences are reversed

In June 2006 the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No 2009-06 ASU 2009-06 ASU 2009-06

clarifies the accounting for income taxes by prescribing minimum recognition threshold tax position is

required to meet before being recognized in the financial statements ASU 2009-06 also provides guidance on

derecognition measurement classification interest and penalties accounting in interim periods disclosure and

transition We adopted ASU 2009-06 as of June 14 2007 and thereafter recognized the tax benefits from

uncertain tax positions only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained on examination by

the taxing authorities based on the technical merits of the position The tax benefits recognized in the financial

statements from such positions are measured based on the largest benefit that has greater than 50% likelihood

of being realized upon ultimate settlement Our policy is to recognize interest and penalties related to inome

taxes in its income tax provision We have not accrued or paid interest or penalties which were material to our

results of operations for the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 As of December 31 2009 and 2008 we

had no material unrecognized tax benefits

We record valuation allowance to reduce our deferred tax assets to the amount which we estimate is more

likely than not to be realized Our ability to realize our deferred tax assets is generally dependent on the

generation of taxable income during the future periods in which the temporary differences are deductible and the

net operating losses can be offset against taxable income We increased our valuation allowance in 2009 and

believe the increase is appropriate based on our pre-tax losses in the past several years and accounting guidelines

that provide that cumulative losses in recent years provide significant evidence that company should not

recognize tax benefits that depend on the generation of taxable income from future operations We have

experienced pre-tax losses in 2009 and 2008 and have recognized additional valuation allowances on current year

tax benefits If we were to determine that we would be able to realize deferred tax assets in the future in excess of

the net recorded amount the resulting adjustment to deferred tax assets would increase net earnings in the period

such determination was made

Impairment of Long-lived Assets

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment when events and circumstances indicate that the carrying

amount of an asset may not be recoverable and are grouped with other assets to the lowest level for which

identifiable cash flows are largely independent of the cash flows of other groups of assets and liabilities

Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by comparison of the carrying value of the assets to

their estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the assets If the carrying value of the

assets exceeds their estimated future cash flows an impairment charge is recognized in the amount by which the

carrying amount of the assets exceeds their fair value

Goodwill

Goodwill acquired in purchase business combination is not amortized but instead we perform goodwill

impairment analysis using the two-step method at the end of our third quarter or whenever events or changes in

circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable
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The recoverability of goodwill is measured at the reporting unit level The fair value of each reporting unit

is estimated using discounted cash flow methodology This analysis requires significant judgments including

estimation of future cash flows which is dependent on internal forecasts estimation of the long-term growth rate

for the business the useful life over which cash flows will occur and the determination of the weighted cost of

capital The internal forecasts used in the 2009 testing were based on the outlook for recovering global

economy roll-out of our new LED product lines for which increasing demand is expected based on relevant

third-party industry studies an improvement in our gross and operating margins resulting from integration of our

business acquisitions made during 2008 and successfully negotiating lower prices from our suppliers Should the

global demand for LED lighting solutions be slower to develop or if we are unable to successfully execute our

strategic initiatives with respect to our targeted markets the actual operating results could be materially different

than our forecasts If the fair value of reporting unit is less than the carrying amount goodwill of the reporting

unit is considered impaired and the second step is performed The second step of the impairment test performed

when required compares the implied fair value of the reporting unit goodwill with the carrying amount of that

goodwill If the carrying amount of the reporting unit goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of that goodwill an

impairment charge is recognized for the amount equal to that excess

The following table presents our goodwill allocated by reporting unit

December 31

2009 2008

Lighting Science Group $1626482 $1626482

LSGBV 4143763 5173480

$5770245 $6799962

The change in goodwill value between 2009 and 2008 was due to the effects of the changes in the foreign

exchange rate

General Financial Overview

The year ended 2009 was in our view transformative year
for the Company During 2009 we

accomplished numerous improvements including

significant progress integrating the acquired businesses

consolidated three separate U.S operating locations into our corporate headquarters in Satellite Beach

Florida

streamlined our product development by focusing on next generation lamps and infrastructure products

such as roadway luminaires

added several key employees particularly in our product development engineering research finance

and supply chain engineering functions

significantly reduced our total operating expenses and

refocused and expanded research and development resources

In addition we have entered into various strategic relationships with technology providers component

suppliers and contract manufacturers We also further increased our access to distribution channels We believe

that the steps that we have taken in 2009 have positioned the Company to be an industry-leading provider of LED

lighting
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Gross Margin

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008

Revenue $31376816 $20758593

Cost of goods sold 24754819 16688600

Gross margin 6621997 4069993

Gross margin percentage 21.1% 19.6%

We have entered into new contract manufacturing and supply agreements that provide us with favorable

terms on key components which are necessary to produce our products We believe that these agreements will

have positive impact on our cost of goods sold and our gross margins in the future

Total Operating Expenses Excluding Certain Non-Cash Expenses

As result of the acquisition of three companies over two-year period and the combination of four

separate entities our financial results have been adversely impacted In order to reduce our general operating

expenses management undertook restructuring initiative to consolidate operations in our Florida and California

locations As result in August 2009 we closed our New Jersey facility and our office in Dallas significantly

reducing the number of employees as well as our overhead costs We also substantially reduced the number of

employees at our Netherlands location in order to reduce duplication in engineering efforts and focus the

organization on sales and distribution across Europe Although this consolidation effort had short-term negative

impact on financial results we expect to achieve positive long-term benefits from this consolidation of

operations

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008

Revenue $31376816 20758593

Total operating expenses 49157476 100322718

Less

Stock based compensation 3936382 8038817

Impairment of goodwill and other intangible

assets 53110133
Depreciation and amortization 5327033 4354028

Net operating expenses 39894061 34819740

Percentage of revenue 127.1% 167.7%

During the year ended December 31 2009 we took significant steps to reduce our total operating expenses

excluding certain non-cash expenses in relation to our revenues Net operating expenses as percentage of

revenues decreased to 127.1% for the year ended December 31 2009 compared to 167.7% for the year ended

December 31 2008
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth statement of operations data expressed as percentage of total revenue for the

periods indicated some items may not add due to rounding

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008

Revenue 100.0% 100.0%

Cost of goods sold 8.9% 80.4%

Gross margin 21.1% 19.6%

Operating expenses
Sales and marketing 23.1% 28.2%

Operations 48.3% 66.4%

General and administrative 68.2% 111.9%

Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets 0.0% 255.8%

Depreciation and amortization 17.0% 1.0%

Total operating expenses 156.6% 483.3%

Loss from operations 135.5% 463.7%

Other income expense
Interest income 0.0% 0.9%

Interest expense 19.3% 6.9%
Other net 0.1% 1.5%

Total other income expense 19.2% 4.5%

Loss before income tax benefit 154.7% 468.2%

Income tax benefit 1.3% 10.6%

Net loss 153.4% 457.6%

Dividend requirements

6% return on Series Preferred Stock 3.9%

8% return on Series Preferred Stock 0.8%

Net loss attributable to common stock 158.1% 457.6%

Netloss 153.4% 457.6%

Foreign currency translation loss 2.7% 9.1%

Comprehensive loss 156.1% 466.7%

Year Ended December 31 2009 Gompared to Year Ended December 31 2008

Years Ended December 31 Variance Percentage of Revenue

2009 2008 2009 2008

Revenue $31376816 $20758593 10618223 512% 100.0% 100.0%

Cost of goods sold 24754819 16688600 8066219 48.3% 78.9% 80.4%

Sales and marketing 7248311 5847833 1400478 23.9% 23.1% 28.2%

Operations 15170029 13786163 1383866 10.0% 48.3% 66.4%

General and administrative 21412103 23224561 1812458 -7.8% 68.2% 111.9%

Impairment of goodwill and other

intangible assets 53110133 53110133 -100.0% 0.0% 255.8%

Depreciation and amortization 5327033 4354028 973005 22.3% 17.0% 21.0%

Interest income 1104 188460 187356 -99.4% 0.0% 0.9%

Interest expense 6058693 1425446 4633247 325.0% 19.3% 6.9%

Otherincomenet 43139 318748 275609 -86.5% 0.1% 1.5%

Income tax benefit 413002 2207507 1794505 -81.3% -1.3% -10.6%
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Revenues

Revenues for the year ended December 31 2009 increased $10.6 million or 51.2% to $31.4 million as

compared to $20.8 million for the year ended December 31 2008 Revenues consisted mainly of sales to OEMs
in the general illumination gaming and retail display sectors and the delivery of four major custom projects in

Asia Europe and North America Revenues increased in 2009 primarily due to our acquisition of LSGBV the

operations of which are included for eight months in fiscal 2008 compared to twelve months in fiscal 2009 and

the purchase of the net assets of Lamina the operations of which are included for five months in fiscal 2008

compared to twelve months in fiscal 2009 Foreign exchange rates did not have material effect on the increase

in revenues for the current period

Cost of Goods Sold

Cost of goods sold increased $8.1 million or 48.3% to $24.8 million for the year ended December 31 2009

from $16.7 million for the year ended December 31 2008 The increase was primarily due to an increase in

revenues from large custom projects and the acquisitions of LSGBV and Lamina

The gross margin on revenues modestly increased in 2009 to 21.1% compared to 19.6% for 2008

Sales and Marketing Expenses

Sales and marketing expenses increased $1.4 million or 23.9% to $7.2 million for the year ended

December 31 2009 from $5.8 million for the year ended December 31 2008 As percentage of revenues sales

and marketing expenses decreased to 23.1% for 2009 compared to 28.2% for 2008 The increase in sales and

marketing expense was primarily due to the acquisitions of LSGBV and Lamina and the effect of full year

of combined operations in 2009 compared to partial year of combined operations in 2008 ii increases in

samples and other marketing costs related to new products launched in the second half of 2008 compared to full

year of expenses for 2009 and iii an increase in commissions expense due mainly to the increase in revenues

Operations Expenses

Operations expenses increased by $1.4 million or 10.0% to $15.2 million for the year ended December 31
2009 compared to $13.8 million for the

year ended December 31 2008 As percentage of revenues operations

expenses decreased to 48.3% for 2009 compared to 66.4% for 2008 The increase in operations expenses was

primarily result of increases in the number of employees in supply chain management including employees

assumed pursuant to our acquisitions of LSGBV and Lamina ii the acquisitions of LSGBV and Lamina and the

effect of full year of combined operations in 2009 compared to partial year of combined operations in 2008

iii increases in third party contract costs and external testing and certification costs related to our research and

development activities and iv accruals of severance expenses related to facility closures and our consolidation

efforts

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses decreased by $1.8 million or 7.8% to $21.4 million for the year ended

December 31 2009 compared $23.2 million for the year ended December 31 2008 As percentage of revenues

general and administrative expenses decreased to 68.2% for 2009 compared to 111.9% for 2008 This decrease

was mainly due to reduced legal expenses and the results of the consolidation activities undertaken by

management during the second half of 2009 This decrease was partially offset by increases resulting from the

acquisitions of LSGBV and Lamina and the effect of full year of combined operations in 2009 compared to

partial year of combined operations in 2008
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Impairment of Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

As of September 30 2009 we completed our annual assessment of the carrying value of goodwill and

determined that no impairment had occurred and therefore no impairment expense was recorded for the year

ended December 31 2009

During the fourth quarter of 2008 we completed our assessment of the carrying value of the goodwill and

intangible assets that we previously recorded and determined that it was necessary to record an impairment

charge of $53.1 million in 2008 number of factors that occurred in 2008 gave rise to the impairment of the

carrying value of the goodwill and intangible assets including delays in the development and launch of

several new products ii delays in obtaining certifications for products iiiproduct failures iv customer

delays on custom projects the lack of the availability of financing for customers to complete significant

projects and installations vi the general slowdown in construction spending and vii the reduction in the

market price of our common stock and the multiple attributed to our common stock As result of these factors

we reviewed and amended our cash flow projections for our business and products Generally we reduced the

sales forecasts that we had otherwise relied on for our internal planning and forecasting This reduction in the

future cash flows of the business along with reduction in the total enterprise value of the Company based on

the traded market price for our common stock resulted in the significant impairment charge in 2008 The

following table summarizes the total impairment charge recorded in the fourth quarter of 2008

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of Lighting Science

Group $42605552

Technology and patents acquired on the acquisition of

Lighting Science Group 2419984

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of LSGBV 6159000

Trademarks acquired on the acquisition of LSGBV 796741

Technology and patents acquired on the acquisition of

LSGBV 322856

Customer relationships acquired on the acquisition of

LSGBV 806000

Total impairment charge $53110133

Depreciation and Amortization Expenses

Depreciation and amortization expense increased $973000 or 22.3% to $5.3 million for the
year

ended

December 31 2009 compared to $4.4 million for the year ended December 31 2008 The increase was primarily

due to an increase of $600000 in the amortization expense for certain software assets during 2009 as

compared with the corresponding period in 2008 due to reduction in the estimated useful life of such software

ii an increase of $711000 in the amortization expense for certain intangible assets during 2009 as compared

with the corresponding period in 2008 due to reduction in the estimated useful life of such assets and iii an

increase in the amortization expense related to technology tooling and molds and other production assets

purchased in the second half of 2008 As percentage of revenues depreciation and amortization expenses

decreased to 17.0% for 2009 compared to 21.0% for 2008

Interest Income

Interest income decreased $187000 to $1000 for the year ended December 31 2009 compared to $188000

for the prior year period due to the decrease in cash balances during 2008 At December 31 2008 and for all of

2009 there were limited funds available for interest bearing investments
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Interest Expense

Interest expense increased $4.6 million or 325.0% to $6.1 million for the year ended December 31 2009

compared to $1.4 million for the year ended December 31 2008 As percentage of revenues interest expense

increased to 19.3% for 2009 compared to 6.9% for 2008 The significant increase in interest
expense recorded in

2009 compared with the corresponding period in 2008 was primarily due to interest expense on our BMO line

of credit that we began to incur in August 2008 ii interest expense on LSGBVs ABN AMRO ten-year term

facility and line of credit iii the amortization of the BMO guarantee fees payable to Pegasus IV iv interest

expense on promissory notes issued to Pegasus IV and certain executives in December 2008 and the first six

months of 2009 interest expense on the Original Pegasus Convertible Note issued to Pegasus IV in May 2009

and the Pegasus Convertible Note issued to Pegasus IV in August 2009 and vi interest expense on the Philips

Convertible Note issued to Philips in August 2009 Interest expense for the year ended December 31 2008

consisted of interest incurred on the line of credit and term debt facility that were owed by LSGBV interest

expense on our BMO line of credit which we started incurring in August 2008 and interest expense on

promissory notes issued to Pegasus IV and certain executives in December 2008

Other Income Net

Other income net decreased by $276000 or 86.5% to $43000 for the year ended December 31 2009

compared to $319000 for the year ended December 31 2008 During 2008 other income related mainly to the

change in the fair value of the derivative instruments that had been recorded as derivative liabilities and the

accretion of the 6% Preferred Stock redemption value During 2009 we recorded loss on the change in fair

value of the same derivative liabilities

Income Tax Benefit

The income tax benefit decreased by $1.8 million or 81.2% to $413000 compared to $2.2 million for the

year ended December 31 2008 The benefit recognized during the year ended December 31 2009 was mainly

due to the valuation allowance of $40.5 million recorded against the net deferred tax assets Due to our history of

net losses management deemed it more-likely-than-not that we would not recognize significant portion of our

deferred tax assets as of December 31 2009

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary sources of liquidity have been short-term loans from Pegasus 1Y our cash reserves draws from

our lines of credit with BMO ABN AMRO and IFN Finance other short-term loans and cash flows from

operating activities We are currently dependent on Pegasus IV for our liquidity needs because our other

historical sources of liquidity are insufficient or unavailable to meet our anticipated working capital needs Cash

outflows are primarily tied to procurement of inventory and payment of salaries benefits and other operating

costs As of March 26 2010 we had backlog of
open

orders of $8.5 million and had recorded $1.3 million of

unearned revenue which mainly represented deposits received for milestone payments achieved on custom

projects The orders included in our backlog are expected to ship throughout 2010 and the unearned revenue is

expected to be recognized during 2010

We have embarked upon an aggressive design and development program in conjunction with bringing our

products to market If we are successful in marketing our current products and developing additional new

products or we make further acquisitions additional capital may be needed to fund the manufacturing process to

produce finished goods and support the required investment in working capital We may be required to raise

additional capital to meet our obligations and to complete the commercialization of certain of our products

currently being developed to increase our marketing efforts or to make additional acquisitions

Negative developments in the latter half of 2008 and during 2009 in the global credit and securitization

markets have resulted in uncertainty in the financial markets in general through 2009 The global economic crisis
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and turmoil in the global financial markets has adversely impacted our business the businesses of our customers

from whom we generate revenues and our potential sources of capital financing As result we have had

difficulty identifying conventional lending sources While we believe that our current cash balances amounts

available under our line of credit and other credit facilities the cash received from the sale of our products and

the anticipated proceeds from the Rights Offering will be sufficient to meet our expected cash needs through at

least December 31 2010 we may need to seek other potential sources of outside capital including entering

strategic business relationships bank borrowings and public or private sales of shares of our capital stock or debt

or similar arrangements

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008

Cash flow activities

Net cash used in operating activities $31159329 $28792901
Net cash used in investing activities 1111656 12624686
Net cash provided by financing activities 31978374 30726264

Operating Activities

Cash used in operating activities was $31.2 million for the year ended December 31 2009 as compared to

$28.8 million for year ended December 31 2008 The primary change in the use of cash in operations was due to

the effect of decrease in net loss offset by the reduction in stock based compensation and impairment of

goodwill and other intangible assets for 2009 compared to 2008 Additionally the cash used in operating

activities during the year ended December 31 2009 was offset by decreases in accounts receivables inventories

and other current and long term assets and unearned revenue of $1.6 million $4.1 million and $989000

respectively as well as increases in accounts payable and accrued
expenses

and other liabilities of $1.1 million

and $2.1 million respectively

Investing Activities

Cash used in investing activities was $1.1 million for the year ended December 31 2009 as compared to

$12.6 million for the year ended December 31 2008 The total cash used in investing activities for the year ended

December 31 2009 was for the purchase of additional property and equipment In the corresponding period of

2008 the cash used in investing activities consisted of $6.2 million for the purchase of LSGBV $4.8 million for

the purchase of the net assets of Lamina and $1.7 million for the purchase of additional property and equipment

Financing Activities

Cash provided by financing activities was $32.0 million for the year ended December 31 2009 as compared

to $30.7 million for the year ended December 31 2008 The cash provided by financing activities for 2009

consisted primarily of $30.9 million in proceeds from the issuance of additional promissory notes and the

Original Pegasus Convertible Note to Pegasus IV $5.0 million in proceeds from the issuance of the Philips

Convertible Note and $29.5 million of additional draws on our lines of credit or other short term borrowings

This was offset by $32.0 million in payments to reduce our outstanding balance on our lines of credit and

payments of $1.5 million on outstanding short and long term debt and promissory notes payable Cash provided

by financing activities for 2008 consisted of $21.1 million in proceeds from additional draws on our lines of

credit or other short term borrowings $10.0 million in proceeds from private placement and $694000 in

proceeds from the exercise of common stock warrants These proceeds were offset by $1.0 million in payments

on outstanding short and long term debt

Convertible Notes and Credit Facilities

During 2008 and 2009 we had bolTowings pursuant to certain unsecured promissory notes Specifically on

December 19 2008 we borrowed $2.0 million from Pegasus IV and $50000 from certain officers of the

33



Company including Govi Rao our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer at that time On March 2009 we

repaid $7500 borrowed from one of our officers and amended the other outstanding promissory notes to extend

the maturity date from March 2009 to June 30 2009 We subsequently borrowed an additional $9.5 million in

the aggregate from Pegasus 1V pursuant to three separate promissory notes issued on February 13

2009 April 17 2009 and May 11 2009 All of the notes except the note issued on May 11 2009 bore interest at

rate of 8% per annum The note issued on May 11 2009 bore interest at 14% per annum

On May 15 2009 we entered into the Original Pegasus Convertible Note with Pegasus IV which provided

us with $31.7 million Specifically pursuant to the Original Pegasus Convertible Note we borrowed $13.2

million on May 15 2009 and $18.5 million on May 26 2009 The proceeds of the borrowings on the Original

Pegasus Convertible Note were generally used to pay in full $11.5 million worth of promissory notes previously

granted to Pegasus IV together with accrued interest thereon and to pay outstanding principal amounts under

our line of credit with BMO Effective as of July 31 2009 we entered into the First Amendment to the

Convertible Note Agreement pursuant to which the maturity date of the Original Pegasus Convertible Note was

extended

On August 27 2009 the Original Pegasus Convertible Note as amended was terminated and we entered

into the Pegasus Convertible Note with Pegasus IV in the principal amount of $32.8 million which represented

the outstanding principal and accrued interest on the Original Pegasus Convertible Note as of August 27 2009

As with the Original Pegasus Convertible Note interest on the Pegasus Convertible Note accrued at the rate of

14% per annum The outstanding principal and interest was scheduled to mature upon the earlier of July 31

2010 and the date of the consummation of the Rights Offering As with the Original Pegasus Convertible

Note so long as any amounts remained outstanding under the Pegasus Convertible Note we were required to

obtain the prior written consent of Pegasus IV prior to borrowing more than $5.0 million in the aggregate

pursuant to our line of credit with BMO As result of our consummation of the Rights Offering on March

2010 approximately $35.2 million of principal and interest on the Pegasus Convertible Note automatically

converted into 35017667 Units of our securities

Philips Convertible Note

On August 27 2009 in conjunction with the Release Agreement between among other parties us and

Philips we entered into the Philips Convertible Note with Philips pursuant to which we borrowed $5.0 million

from Philips Interest on any outstanding principal balance under the Philips Convertible Note accrued at the rate

of 14% per annum All principal and interest on the Philips Convertible Note was due on the earliest of the

following three dates July 31 2010 the date of the consummation of the rights offering or the first

business day immediately following the date on which we notified Philips that Pegasus IV had voluntarily

converted the outstanding principal and interest under the Pegasus Convertible Note As result of our

consummation of the Rights Offering on March 2010 approximately $5.4 million of principal and interest on

the Philips Convertible Note automatically converted into 5330482 Units of our securities

Other Credit Facilities

As previously discussed in July 2008 we acquired the net assets of Lamina for $4.5 million In connection

with this acquisition we entered into an agreement with BMO to obtain demand line of credit in the amount of

$20.0 million On March 15 2010 our demand line of credit with BMO was increased to $25.0 million The

demand line of credit is available to us for working capital and other corporate purposes As of March 19 2010

the amount of indebtedness owed by the Company on the BMO line of credit was $20.4 million and the amount

available for additional borrowing was $4.6 million The BMO line of credit matures on written demand by

BMO but in no event later than August 24 2010 In the event that Pegasus or its assignees fully exercise the

Standby Purchase Option and purchase all of the Units that were not subscribed for pursuant to the Rights

Offering we have agreed to take commercially reasonable efforts to amend the Guaranty and the amended Loan

Agreement to reduce the total amount of the Guaranty required by the amended Loan Agreement from
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$25 million to $10 million and ii extend the maturity date of the amended Loan Agreement from August 24
2010 to the Fourth Amendment Maturity Date

LSGBV has also negotiated short- and long-term debt facilities with ABN AMRO and working capital

facility with IFN Finance At March 19 2010 the total amount outstanding under the ABN AMRO facilities was

$1.1 million and the total amount outstanding under the IFN Finance facility was $966000 Our short- and long-

term debt facilities with ABN AMRO originally where scheduled to mature on January 2010 and January

2014 respectively However because we were in default on our solvency ratio covenant as of November 30

2009 we renegotiated the terms of our debt with ABN AMRO Pursuant to the new terms of our agreement the

maturity date is December 15 2010 for both facilities Further we have agreed to reduce the principal amount

outstanding on these facilities on monthly basis until maturity The working capital facility with IFN Finance

matures on November 14 2010

We pay dividends on our 6% Convertible Preferred Stock four times annually February 10 May 10

August 10 and November 10 Based on the number of shares of 6% Convertible Preferred Stock currently

outstanding we expect to pay up to $40000 annually to satisfy our dividend obligation

Rig/its Offering

On March 2010 we consummated the Rights Offering On the closing date of the Rights Offering we
received approximately $303000 from the sale of 301268 Units Pursuant to the Standby Purchase Option

Pegasus IV or its assignees have the option to acquire approximately 24966925 Units which were not

subscribed for pursuant to the Rights Offering On February 23 2010 we received $2.0 million from Pegasus IV

as an advance payment for Units pursuant to the Standby Purchase Option Notwithstanding this advance

payment Pegasus IV or its assignees may also elect to purchase additional Units pursuant to the Standby

Purchase Option until April 18 2010 In an amendment to Schedule 3D that was filed by Pegasus IV and its

affiliates on March 2010 Pegasus IV disclosed that Pegasus IV or its assignees currently intend to purchase all

of the remaining Units pursuant to the Standby Purchase Option In the event that Pegasus IV elects to exercise

the Standby Purchase Option in full we would receive approximately $25.4 million in gross proceeds in

connection with the closing of the Rights Offering excluding the amount of principal and interest that

automatically converted to Units pursuant to the terms of the Pegasus Convertible Note and the Philips

Convertible Note and the exercise of the Standby Purchase Option

Item Financial Statements

The fkiancial statements required by this item are included in Part IV Item IS of this Annual Report
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Item Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9AT Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e under the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended the Exchange Act that are designed to provide reasonable

assurance that the information required to be disclosed by us in reports filed under the Exchange Act is recorded

processed summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the rules and forms of the SEC

We carried out an evaluation subsequent to the period covered by this Annual Report under the supervision

and with the participation of our management including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Accounting

Officer of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this

Annual Report Based on that evaluation and the identification of the material weaknesses in internal control over

financial reporting described below our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Accounting Officer concluded that

our disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31 2009 were not effective

Managements Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial

reporting for the Company Internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rule 13a-15f under the

Exchange Act is set of processes designed by or under the supervision of our Chief Executive Officer and

Chief Accounting Officer to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of our financial reporting and

the preparation of our financial statements for external purposes in accordance with GAAP Our internal control

over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

Pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect our

transactions and dispositions of our assets

Provide reasonable assurance that our transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of

our financial statements in accordance with GAAP and that our receipts and expenditures are being

made only in accordance with authorizations of our management and directors and

Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use

or disposition of our assets that could have material effect on our financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect all

misstatements Thus any system of internal control however well designed and operated can provide only

reasonable and not absolute assurance that the objectives of the system will be met In addition projections of

any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management including our Chief Executive Officer

and Chief Accounting Officer we conducted an assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over

financial reporting based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Conmiission the COSO Framework as of

December 31 2009

material wealuess in internal control is defined as deficiency or combination of deficiencies in

internal control over financial reporting such that there is reasonable possibility that material misstatement of
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the companys annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on timely basis In

connection with the assessment described above we identified the following control deficiencies that represent

material weaknesses at December 31 2009

Financial Reporting and ConsolidationControls surrounding the overall financial reporting and

consolidation
process were inadequate to close the books consolidate information and assemble all pertinent

information and identify adjustments in timely manner due to the following

The book-closing process was not streamlined due to limited IT application functionality and disparate

general ledger applications and charts of accounts between the United States and European entities

Key accounting policies for preparing and reviewing the financial statements have not been formally

documented

There was extensive turnover within our finance department in fiscal 2009

Segregation of Duties and IT Application AccessWe identified various segregation of duties issues

across all areas of accounting and reporting due to the limited size of the accounting staff In addition it was not

possible to properly restrict access to certain accounting records because of limited functionality of current IT

applications

Inventory AccountingIn general there was an overall lack of internal controls over inventory

accounting During our assessment of the internal control process we identified the following internal control

gaps

inventory reserves were not supported by documented methodologies and assumptions

lack of controls with respect to approvals and documentation support for inventory-related purchases

limited access controls and documentation with respect to updating and maintaining inventory costl

master files and bills of materials

lack of formal policies with respect to costing methodology reserve requirements or required

approvals and

overall segregation of duties issues with respect to the purchasing of inventory physical custody of

assets and inventory counts

Classification of Project CostsOur current process does not allow for the complete capture of certain

costs to work-in-process inventory for custom solution lighting projects Specifically we do not have

methodology to reconcile the completeness of labor costs to the correct projects support labor burden

assumptions reconcile the completeness of materials purchased to projects or allocate manufacturing overhead

for large open projects As result potential costs that should have been captured as work-in-process inventory

and pushed through cost of goods sold could have instead been captured as selling general and administrative

expenses

Entity Level ControlsAlthough various entity level controls were noted to be in place within each

component of the COSO Framework the following important entity level controls were not in place as of

December 31 2009

whistleblower hotline did not exist to report suspicion of unethical or illegal conduct

an approval/authority matrix to align roles and key processes supporting financial reporting objectives

and

our IT systems did not support segregation of duties
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Formal Policies and ProceduresIn general there was an overall lack of formal policies and

standardized procedures across numerous accounting cycles Numerous internal control
gaps

and control failures

were identified during managements assessment across all key accounting processes increasing the likelihood

that in the aggregate material error could occur and go undetected

As result of the material weakness described above management has concluded that as of December 31

2009 we did not maintain effective internal control over financial reporting involving the preparation and

reporting of our consolidated financial statements presented in confonnity with GAAP

This annual report does not include an attestation report of our registered public accounting firm regarding

internal control over financial reporting Managements report was not subject to attestation by our registered

public accounting firm pursuant to temporary rules of the SEC that permit us to provide only managements

report in this annual report

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15f and

15d- 151 under the Exchange Act during the quarter ended December 31 2009 that have materially affected or

are reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting

Item 9B Other Information

None
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PART III

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required in response to this Item 10 is incorporated herein by reference to our definitive

proxy statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A promulgated under the Exchange Act not

later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal
year

covered by this Annual Report

Item 11 Executive Compensation

The information required in response to this Item 11 is incorporated herein by reference to our definitive

proxy statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 4A promulgated under the Exchange Act not

later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder

Matters

Certain information regarding securities authorized for issuance under our equity compensation plans is

included under the caption Equity Compensation Plan Information in Part II Item above of this Annual

Report and is incorporated by reference herein Other information required in response to this Item 12 is

incorporated herein by reference to our definitive proxy statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant to

Regulation 14A promulgated under the Exchange Act not later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year

covered by this Annual Report

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information required in response to this Item 13 is incorporated herein by reference to our definitive

proxy statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A promulgated under the Exchange Act not

later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report

Item 14 Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required in response to this Item 14 is incorporated herein by reference to our definitive

proxy statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A promulgated under the Exchange Act not

later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report
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PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

The following documents are filed as part of this report

Index to Consolidated Financial Statements Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31 2009 and 2008 Consolidated Statements of Operations and

Comprehensive Loss for the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 Consolidated Statements of

Stockholders Equity Deficit for the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 and Consolidated Statements of

Cash Flows for the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008

The financial statement schedules have been omitted because they are not applicable or the required

information is shown in the Consolidated Financial Statements or the Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statements

Exhibits The exhibits required to be filed by this Item 15 are set forth in the Index to Exhibits

accompanying this report
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant

has duly caused this Form 10-K to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

LIGHTING SCIENCE GROUP CORPORATION

April 13 2010 By
Is ZACHARY GIBLER

Zachary Gibler

Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board

Principal Executive Officer

Is JONATHAN COHEN

Jonathan Cohen

Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer

Principal Financial and Accounting Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by
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Is DAVID BELL
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Is DONALD HARKLEROAD
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Donald Harkleroad
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Chief Executive Officer and April 13 2010

Chairman of the Board

Principal Executive Officer

President and Chief Operating Officer April 13 2010

Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer April 13 2010

Principal Financial and Accounting Officer

Director April 13 2010

Director April 13 2010

Director

Director
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April 13 2010

Date

/5 KHALED HARAM

Khaled Haram

Is JONATHAN COHEN

Jonathan Cohen
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

EXHIBIT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

2.1 Share Purchase Agreement dated April 22 2008 by and among Lighting Science Coöperatief

U.A Lighting Science Group Corporation van de Vrie Holding B.V van de Vrie Holding

B.V R.Q van de Vrie Holding B.V van de Vrie Jr Holding B.V Y.B van de Vrie Holding

B.V and Lighting Partner B.V certain schedules and exhibits have been omitted and the

Company agrees to furnish to the Commission supplementally copy of any omitted schedules and

exhibits upon request previously filed as Exhibit 2.1 to the CulTent Report on Form 8-K filed on

April 24 2008 File No 0-20354 and incorporated herein by reference

2.2 Asset Purchase Agreement dated July 29 2008 by and among LLI Acquisition Inc Lighting

Science Group Corporation Lamina Lighting Inc and the stockholders listed on the signature

pages thereto previously filed as Exhibit 2.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 29

2008 File No 0-20354 and incorporated herein by reference

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Lighting Science Group Corporation

previously filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on October 14 2009
File No 0-20354 and incorporated herein by reference

3.2 Amended and Restated By-laws of Lighting Science Group Corporation previously filed as

Exhibit 3.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 11 2007 File No 0-20354 and

incorporated herein by reference

4.1 Form of Warrant granted pursuant to the Securities Purchase Agreement dated as of May 12 2005

previously filed as Exhibit 99.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 16 2005 File

No 0-20354 and incorporated herein by reference

4.2 Form of Warrant issued to certain directors officers and security holders as consideration for

providing guarantees pursuant to the Line of Credit previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Current

Report on Form 8-K filed on September 22 2006 File No 0-20354 and incorporated herein by

reference

4.3 Form of Warrant dated March 2007 previously filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on

Form 8-K filed on March 12 2007 File No 0-20354 and incorporated herein by reference

4.4 Form of Warrant dated March 2007 previously filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Current Report on

Form 8-K filed on March 12 2007 File No 0-20354 and incorporated herein by reference

4.5 Form of Warrant issued upon exercise of Warrant previously filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Current

Report on Form 8-K filed on March 12 2007 File No 0-20354 and incorporated herein by

reference

4.6 Certificate of Designation of Series Stock previously filed as Exhibit 4.2 to the Current Report

on Form 8-K filed on October 11 2007 File No 0-20354 and incorporated herein by reference

4.7 Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement dated April 22 2008 by and among

Lighting Science Group Corporation van de Vrie Holding B.V van de Vrie Holding B.V
R.Q van de Vrie Holding B.V and van de Vrie Jr Holding B.V Y.B van de Vrie Holding

B.V and LED Holdings LLC previously filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K

filed on April 24 2008 File No.0-20354 and incorporated by reference

4.8 Warrant to Purchase Common Stock dated July 25 2008 by and between Lighting Science Group

Corporation and Pegasus Partners IV L.P previously filed as Exhibit 4.2 to the Current Report on

Form 8-K filed on July 29 2008 File No 0-20354 and incorporated herein by reference
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EXHIBIT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

4.9 Certificate of Designation of Series Preferred Stock of Lighting Science Group Corporation

previously filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 2009 File

No 0-20354 and incorporated herein by reference

4.10 Warrant to Purchase Common Stock dated December 31 2008 by and between Lighting Science

Group Corporation and Morrison Foerster LLP previously filed as Exhibit 4.2 to the Current

Report on Form 8-K filed on January 2009 File No 0-20354 and incorporated herein by

reference

4.11 Warrant to Purchase Common Stock dated December 31 2008 by and between Lighting Science

Group Corporation and Haynes and Boone LLP previously filed as Exhibit 4.3 to the Current

Report on Form 8-K filed on January 2009 File No 0-20354 and incorporated herein by

reference

4.12 Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement dated as of January 23 2009 by and

between Lighting Science Group Corporation and Pegasus Partners IV L.P previously filed as

Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 30 2009 File No 0-20354 and

incorporated herein by reference

4.13 Certificate of Designation of Series Non-Convertible Preferred Stock of Lighting Science Group

Corporation previously filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September

2009 File No 0-20354 and incorporated herein by reference

4.14 Specimen Common Stock Certificate previously filed as Exhibit 4.14 to Amendment No to the

Registration Statement on Form S-i filed on January 12 2010 File No 333-162966 and

incorporated herein by reference

4.15 Specimen Series Non-Convertible Preferred Stock Certificate previously filed as Exhibit 4.15 to

Amendment No to the Registration Statement on Form S-i filed on January 12 2010 File No
333-162966 and incorporated herein by reference

4.16 Form of Warrant issued pursuant to that certain Rights Offering previously filed as Exhibit 4.16 to

Amendment No ito the Registration Statement on Form S-i filed on January 12 2010 File No
333-162966 and incorporated herein by reference

4.17 Specimen Unit Certificate issued pursuant to that certain Rights Offering the Convertible Note

dated August 27 2009 between Lighting Science Group Corporation as borrower and Pegasus

Partners IV L.P as lender and the Convertible Note dated August 27 2009 between Lighting

Science Group Corporation as borrower and Koninklijke Philips Electronics N.y as lender

10.1 Employment Agreement dated as of October 2007 by and between Lighting Science Group

Corporation and Fredric Maxik previously filed as Exhibit 10.6 to the Current Report on Form 8-K

filed on October ii 2007 File No 0-20354 and incorporated herein by reference

10.2 Technology Development and Supply Agreement dated April 30 2008 by and between Lighting

Science Group Corporation and Jamestown One Times Square L.P previously filed as

Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 2008 File No 0-20354 and

incorporated herein by reference

10.3 Letter of Authorization dated June 20 2008 by and between Lighting Science Group Corporation

and Melco Crown COD Developments Limited previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Current

Report on Form 8-K filed on June 30 2008 File No 0-20354 and incorporated herein by

reference

10.4 Loan Authorization Agreement dated July 25 2008 by and between Lighting Science Group

Corporation and Bank of Montreal previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on

Form 8-K filed on July 29 2008 File No 0-20354 and incorporated herein by reference
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EXHIBIT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

10.5 First Amendment to Loan Authorization Agreement dated July 24 2009 by and between Lighting

Science Group Corporation and Bank of Montreal previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Current

Report on Form 8-K filed on August 2009 File No 0-20354 and incorporated herein by

reference

106 Allonge to Demand Note dated July 24 2009 by and between Lighting Science Group

Corporation and Bank of Montreal previously filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on Form

8-K filed on August 2009 File No 0-20354 and incorporated herein by reference

10.7 Second Amendment to Bank of Montreal Loan Authorization Agreement and Demand Note dated

as of August 24 2009 by and between Lighting Science Group Corporation and Bank of Montreal

previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 27 2009 File

No 0-20354 and incorporated herein by reference

10.8 Second Allonge to Demand Note dated as of August 24 2009 by and between Lighting Science

Group Corporation and Bank of Montreal previously filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on

Form 8-K filed on August 27 2009 File No 0-20354 and incorporated herein by reference

10.9 Amended and Restated Equity Based Compensation Plan previously filed as Appendix to the

Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A filed on September 18 2008 File No 0-20354 and incorporated

herein by reference

10.10 Amendment to the Lighting Science Group Corporation Amended and Restated Equity-Based

Compensation Plan previously filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on

August 27 2009 File No 0-20354 and incorporated herein by reference
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of

Lighting Science Group Corporation and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Lighting Science Group Corporation and

Subsidiaries as of December 31 2009 and 2008 and the related consolidated statements of operations and

comprehensive loss stockholders equity deficit and cash flows for the years then ended These financial

statements are the responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on

these financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test

basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes

assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating

the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our

opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects

the financial position of Lighting Science Group Corporation and Subsidiaries as of December 31 2009 and

2008 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with U.S

generally accepted accounting principles

We were not engaged to examine the effectiveness of Lighting Science Group Corporations internal control

over financial reporting as of December 31 2009 and accordingly we do not express an opinion thereon

Is McGladrey Pullen LLP

Dallas Texas

April 13 2010
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LIGHTING SCIENCE GROUP CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31 December 31
2009 2008

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash 267048 254538

Accounts receivable net of allowances for doubtful accounts 5020226 6633888

Inventories net of allowances 8064624 12202774

Deferred income tax 682227 671782

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1472018 1517690

Total current assets 15506143 21280672

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT net 3291296 3630888

OTHER ASSETS

Intangible assets net 13482736 17452632

Goodwill 5770245 6799962

Otherlong-termassets 418394 389113

Total other assets 19671375 24641707

TOTAL ASSETS 38468814 49553267

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY DEFICIT

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Short-term debt includes $32846619 of related party loans in 2009 and $2000000 in 2008 56400173 24426991

Current portion of long-term debt 110322 142262

Accounts payable 7496633 6419248

Accrued expenses 6190129 4163156

Unearned revenue 12631 1001704

Total current liabilities 70209888 36153361

OTHER LIABILITIES

Long-term debt less current portion 117447 96443

Deferred income taxes 1805334 2049074

Total other liabilities 1922781 2145517

TOTAL LIABILITIES 72132669 38298878

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

6% CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK $.001 par value 2656250 shares authorized 196902

shares issued and outstanding in 2009 and 2008 liquidation value of $630086 in 2009 and 2008 585549 459532

STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY DEFICIT

Series Preferred Stock $001 par value 2000000 shares authorized issued and outstanding in

2009 and 2008 Liquidation value $17127642 2008$16132619 2000 2000

Series Preferred Stock $001 par value 251739 shares authorized issued and outstanding in 2009

and 2008 Liquidation value $3476066 2008$3209666 252 252

Common stock $001 par value 400000000 shares authorized 29873846 200828985897

shares issued and outstanding 29874 28986

Additional paid-in-capital 116447080 112505607

Accumulated deficit 148002652 99865725

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 2725958 1876263

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY DEFICIT 34249404 10794857

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY DEFICIT 38468814 49553267

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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LIGHTING SCIENCE GROUP CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

Revenue

Cost of goods sold

Gross margin

Operating expenses

Sales and marketing

Operations

General and administrative

Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets

Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenses

Loss from operations

For the Years Ending December 31

2009 2008

31376816 20758593

24754819 16688600

6621997 4069993

7248311 5847833

15170029 13786163

21412103 23224561

53110133

5327033 4354028

49157476 100322718

42535479 96252725

Other income expense

Interest income

Interest expense

Other net

Total other income expense

Loss before income tax benefit

Income tax benefit

Net loss

Dividend requirements

6% return on Series Preferred Stock

8% return on Series Preferred Stock

Net loss attributable to common stock

Basic and diluted net loss per weighted average common share

Basic and diluted weighted average number of common shares outstanding

Net loss

Foreign currency translation loss

Comprehensive loss

1104

6058693

43139

6014450

48549929

413002

48136927

1217642

266400

$49620969

1.69

29352585

$48 136927

849695

$48986622

188460

1425446

318748

918238

97170963

2207507

94963456

94963456

3.55

26781431

94963456

1886544

96850000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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LIGHTING SCIENCE GROUP CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended

December 31

2009 2008

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net loss 48136927 94963456
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities

Expenses paid by issuance of common stock and warrants 560000 5326130

Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets 53110133

Non cash stock option compensation expense 3376382 2712687
Accretion of 6% convertible preferred stock redemption value 126017 94607

Fair value adjustment to liabilities under derivative contracts 2731 415628
Loss on disposal of assets 143846

Deferred income tax 413002 2207507
Depreciation and amortization 5327033 4354028

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable 1613662 258754

Inventories 4074095 320766

Prepaid expenses and other current and long-term assets 16391 865179

Accounts payable 1077385 1123060
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 2062131 373358
Unearned revenue 989073 1001704

Net cash used in operating activities 31159329 28792901

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of Lighting Science Group BV 6190000
Acquisition of Lamina Lighting Inc 4763383
Purchase of property and equipment 1111656 1671303

Net cash used in investing activities 1111656 12624686

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repurchase of common stock pursuant to reverse stock split 1796
Proceeds from draws on line of credit and other short-term borrowings 29550000 21073243

Payment of amounts due under line of credit 31950000
Proceeds from issuance of promissory notes 35896619

Payment of amounts due under promissory notes 50000
Payment of short and long-term debt 1436335 1038709
Payment of 6% convertible preferred stock dividends 37889
Proceeds from issuance of common stock under 2008 Employee Stock Purchase

Plan 5979

Proceeds from exercise of common stock warrants 693526

Proceeds from private placement 10000000

Net cash provided by financing activities 31978374 30726264

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash 305121 453568

Net increase decrease in cash 12510 11144891
Cash balance at beginning of year 254538 11399429

Cash balance at end of year 267048 254538

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Interest paid during the year 1222439 468088

Taxes paid during the year

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Value of common stock issued in connection with Lighting Science Group BV
transaction 22233600

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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LIGHTING SCIENCE GROUP CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note Description of Business and Basis of Presentation

Overview

Lighting Science Group Corporation the Company was incorporated in Delaware in 1988 and the

business today is the result of the combination of the products patents intellectual property assets and

businesses of four light emitting diode LED lighting companies The Company researches designs develops

manufactures and markets range of lighting devices and systems that use LEDs as the light source LEDs are

semiconductor devices that emit light when electric currents are passed through them and present many

advantages over traditional light sources

Basis of Finanthil Statement Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States and the rules of the Securities Exchange Commission SEC
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries as

listed in the following table

Percentage

Company Name Ownership

Lighting Science Group Limited U.K 100%

LSGC Pty Ltd Australia 100%

LSGC LLC Delaware 100%

Lighting Science Cooperatief U.A The Netherlands 100%

Lighting Science Group B.V The Netherlands

LSGBV 100%

LU Acquisition Inc Delaware 100%

LED Systems K.K Japan 60%

consolidated effective May 2008

consolidated effective August 2008

consolidated effective October 2008

All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in the accompanying

consolidated financial statements

Note Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires

management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and

disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the financial statements and the reported amounts of

revenue and expenses during the reporting periods Actual results could differ from these estimates

Foreign Currency Translation

The functional currency for the foreign operations of the Company is the local currency For LSGBV the

functional currency is the Euro The translation of foreign currencies into U.S dollars is performed for balance

sheet accounts using exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet dates and for revenue and expense accounts

using the average exchange rate for each period during the year Any gains or losses resulting from the

translation are included in accumulated other comprehensive income loss in the consolidated statements of

stockholders equity and are excluded from net income loss
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LIGHTING SCIENCE GROUP CORPORATION AN SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

Cash

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less at the

date of purchase to be cash equivalents As of both December 31 2009 and 2008 the Company had no cash

equivalents

Accounts Receivable

The Company records accounts receivable at the invoiced amount when its products are shipped to

customers or upon the completion of specific milestone billing requirements The allowance for doubtful

accounts is the Companys best estimate of probable credit losses in the Companys existing accounts receivable

The Company reviews its allowance for doubtful accounts quarterly Past due balances over 90 days and

customer specific information is reviewed for collectability The Company writes off accounts receivable when it

becomes apparent based upon age or customer circumstances that such amounts willnot be collected Recovery

of bad debt amounts previously written off is recorded as reduction of bad debt expense in the period the

payment is collected Generally the Company does not require collateral for its accounts receivable As of

December 31 2009 and 2008 accounts receivable of the Company are reflected net of reserves of $655000 and

$1.2 million respectively

Inventories

Inventories which consist of raw materials and components work-in-process and finished lighting products

are stated at the lower of cost or market Cost is primarily determined using weighted average method Slow

product adoption rapid technological changes and new product introductions and enhancements could result in

excess or obsolete inventory The Company evaluates inventory levels and expected usage on periodic basis

based upon business trends to specifically identify obsolete slow-moving or non-salable inventory The

provision for obsolete and slow moving inventory during the period is recorded as an operating expense in the

Consolidated Statement of Operations

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation Equipment under capital leases is

stated at the present value of future minimum lease payments Depreciation is provided using the straight-line

method over the estimated economic lives of the assets which range from two to five years Leasehold

improvements and equipment under capital leases are amortized on straight-line basis over the shorter of the

minimum lease term or the estimated useful life of the assets

Impairment of Long-lived Assets

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment when events and circumstances indicate that the carrying

amount of an asset may not be recoverable and are grouped with other assets to the lowest level for which

identifiable cash flows are largely independent of the cash flows of other groups of assets and liabilities

Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by comparison of the carrying value of the assets to

their estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the assets If the carrying value of the

assets exceeds their estimated future cash flows an impairment charge is recognized in the amount by which the

carrying amount of the assets exceeds their fair value

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets with estimable useful lives are amortized over their respective useful lives which ranged

from 3.0 to 20.0 years
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Goodwill

Goodwill acquired in purchase business combination is not amortized but instead the Company performs

goodwill impairment analysis using the two-step method at the end of the Companys third quarter and

whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable

The recoverability of goodwill is measured at the reporting unit level The fair value of each reporting unit

is estimated using discounted cash flow methodology This analysis requires significant judgments including

estimation of future cash flows which is dependent on internal forecasts estimation of the long-term growth rate

for the business the useful life over which cash flows will occur and the determination of the weighted cost of

capital If the fair value of reporting unit is less than the carrying amount goodwill of the reporting unit is

considered impaired and the second step is performed The second step of the impairment test when required

compares the implied fair value of the reporting unit goodwill with the carrying amount of that goodwill If the

carrying amount of the reporting unit goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of that goodwill an impairment

charge is recognized for the amount equal to that excess

The Company completed its annual goodwill impairment test as of September 30 2009 and 2008 and

completed an additional test as of December 31 2008 due to changes in circumstances in the fourth quarter of

2008 An impairment charge of $0 and $48.8 million was recorded for the years ended December 31 2009 and

2008 respectively

Derivatives

All derivatives are recorded at fair value on the consolidated balance sheet and changes in the fair value of

such derivatives are recorded in operations each period and are reported in other income expense

Revenue Recognition

Product sales are recorded when the products are shipped and title passes to customers Where sales of

product are subject to certain customer acceptance terms revenue from the sale is recognized once these terms

have been met The Company recognizes revenue on its custom design projects using the completed contract

method Revenue is recognized upon substantial completion and acceptance by the customer of each project

Amounts received as deposits against future completion of projects are recorded as unearned revenue until such

projects are completed and title
passes to the customer

Shipping and Handling Fees and Costs

Shipping and handling fees billed to customers are included in revenue Shipping and handling costs

associated with in-bound freight are recorded in cost of goods sold Other shipping and handling costs are

included in selling general and administrative
expenses

and totaled $149000 and $264000 for the years ended

December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively

Research and Development

The Company expenses all research and development costs including amounts for design prototypes and

modifications made to existing prototypes as incurred except for prototypes that have alternative future uses All

costs incurred for building of production tooling and molds are capitalized and amortized over the estimated

useful life of the tooling set or mold The Company has expensed research and development costs of $1.3 million

and $1.1 million for the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively
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Product Warranties

The Company provides limited warranty covering defective materials and workmanship The estimated

costs related to warranties are accrued at the time products are sold based on various factors including the

Companys stated warranty policies and practices the historical frequency of claims and the cost to replace or

repair its products under warranty The following table summarizes warranty provision activity during the year

ended December 31 2009

Warranty provision at December 31 2008 302173

Additions to provision 628000

Less warranty costs 486186

Warranty provision at December 31 2009 443987

Share Based Compensation

The Company has one share based compensation plan The fair value of share based compensation awards

including stock options restricted stock and the employee stock purchase plan is recognized as compensation

expense in the statement of operations The fair value of stock options is estimated on the date of grant using the

Black-Scholes option pricing model Option valuation methods require the input of highly subjective

assumptions including the expected stock price volatility Measured compensation expense related to such

option grants is recognized ratably over the vesting period of the related grants Restricted stock issuances are

valued on the date of grant

Income taxes

The Company employs the asset and liability method in accounting for income taxes Under this method

deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on temporary differences between the financial reporting

and tax bases of assets and liabilities and net operating loss carryforwards and are measured using enacted tax

rates and laws that are expected to be in effect when the differences are reversed

The Company recognizes tax benefits from uncertain tax positions only if it is more likely than not that the

tax position will be sustained on examination by the taxing authorities based on the technical merits of the

position The tax benefits recognized in the financial statements from such positions are measured based on the

largest benefit that has greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement The Companys

policy is to recognize interest and penalties related to income taxes in its income tax provision The Company has

not accrued or paid interest or penalties which were material to its results of operations for the years ended

December 31 2009 and 2008 As of December 31 2009 and 2008 the Company had no material unrecognized

tax benefits

Valuation AllowanceDeferred Tax Assets

The Company records valuation allowance to reduce its deferred tax assets to the amount which the

Company estimates is more likely than not to be realized The Companys ability to realize its deferred tax assets

is generally dependent on the generation of taxable income during the future periods in which the temporary

differences are deductible and the net operating losses can be offset against taxable income The Company
increased its valuation allowance in 2009 and believes the increase is appropriate based on its pre-tax losses in

the past several years and accounting guidelines that provide that cumulative losses in recent years provide

significant evidence that company should not recognize tax benefits that depend on the generation of taxable

income from future operations The Company has experienced pre-tax losses in 2009 and 2008 and has
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recognized additional valuation allowances on current year tax benefits If the Company were to determine that it

would be able to realize deferred tax assets in the future in excess of the net recorded amount the resulting

adjustment to deferred tax assets would increase net earnings in the period such determination was made

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are computed based upon the weighted average number of common shares

outstanding during the periods Diluted earnings per share are based upon the weighted average number of

common shares outstanding during the periods plus the number of incremental shares of common stock

contingently issuable upon the conversion of the preferred stock and the exercise of warrants and stock options

No effect has been given to the assumed exercise of warrants or stock options because their effect would be anti-

dilutive

Segment Reporting

The Company operates as single segment under Accounting Standard Codification ASC 280-10-50

Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Infonnation The Companys chief operating

decision maker reviews financial information at the enterprise level and makes decisions accordingly

Subsequent Events

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the date of the statement of financial condition

but before financial statements are issued Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide

additional evidence about conditions that existed at the date of the statement of financial condition including the

estimates inherent in the
process

of preparing financial statements Nonrecognized subsequent events are events

that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the statement of financial condition but

arose after that date In accordance with FASB ASC 855 10 SFAS No 165 Subsequent Events the Company
has assessed subsequent events in these annual financial statements through the date when the financial

statements were issued to determine if they must be reported

New Accounting Pronouncements

The Company has reviewed all recently issued accounting pronouncements and does not believe the

adoption of any of these pronouncements has had or will have material impact on the Companys consolidated

financial condition or the results of its operations or cash flows

In June 2009 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued ASC 105- 10-05 The FASBs

Accounting Standards Codification the Codification This standard establishes only two levels of GAAP
authoritative and non-authoritative The Codification is the source of authoritative nongovernmental GAAP
except for rules and interpretive releases of the SEC which are sources of authoritative GAAP for SEC

registrants This standard is effective for financial statements for interim or annual reporting periods ending after

September 15 2009 The Company has implemented the new guidelines and numbering system prescribed by the

Codification when referring to GAAP The adoption of ASC Topic 105-10-05 did not have material effect on

the Companys consolidated financial statements as the Codification was not intended to change or alter existing

GAAP
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Note Liquidity

As shown in the consolidated financial statements the Company has experienced significant net losses as

well as negative cash flows from operations since its inception on June 14 2007 At December 31 2009 the

Company also had substantial balance of short-term debt

To provide the Company with adequate working capital the Company issued short-term notes payable to

Pegasus Partners IV L.P Pegasus IV which together with its affiliates is the Companys controlling

stockholder As of December 31 2009 these borrowings totaled $32.8 million As result of the Companys
consummation of the Rights Offering as defined below on March 2010 approximately $35.2 million of

principal and interest automatically converted into 35017667 Units of the Companys securities

On August 27 2009 in conjunction with the Release Agreement between among other parties the

Company and Koninklijke Philips Electronics N.y Philips the Company entered into Convertible Note

Agreement the Philips Convertible Note with Philips pursuant to which the Company borrowed $5.0 million

from Philips As result of the Companys consummation of the Rights Offering on March 2010

approximately $5.4 million of principal and interest on the Philips Convertible Note automatically converted into

5330482 Units of the Companys securities

On March 2010 the Company consummated rights offering the Rights Offering pursuant to which it

offered certain of its existing security holders 25268193 Units of its securities with each Unit consisting of one

share of the Companys Series Non-Convertible Preferred Stock and warrant entitling the holder thereof to

purchase one share of common stock for $6.00 per share On the closing date of the Rights Offering the

Company received approximately $300000 Pursuant to the New Pegasus Convertible Note the Company

previously granted Pegasus IV or its assignees the option the Standby Purchase Option to acquire any or all

of the Units that were not subscribed for pursuant to the Rights Offering On February 23 2010 the Company
received $2.0 million from Pegasus IV as an advance payment for Units pursuant to the Standby Purchase

Option Notwithstanding this advance payment Pegasus IV or its assignees may also elect to purchase additional

Units pursuant to the Standby Purchase Option until April 18 2010 In total the Standby Purchase Option

provides Pegasus IV the right to purchase approximately 24966925 Units The Company has been informed by

Pegasus IV that Pegasus IV or its assignees currently intend to purchase all of the remaining Units pursuant to

the Standby Purchase Option The Company therefore expects to receive approximately $25.4 million in
gross

proceeds in connection with the closing of the Rights Offering excluding the amount of principal and interest

that automatically converted to Units pursuant to the terms of the Pegasus Convertible Note and the Philips

Convertible Note and the exercise of the Standby Purchase Option The proceeds of the Rights Offering are

anticipated to be applied to the re-payment of outstanding principal amounts on the Companys line of credit

with Bank of Montreal BMO As of March 31 2010 the balance outstanding on the BMO facility was $21.5

million

On March 15 2010 the Company entered into third amendment to the Loan Agreement with BMO which

increased the size of its line of credit with BMO from $20 million to $25 million On the same date and in

connection with the third amendment Pegasus TV executed Guarantors Acknowledgement and Consent the

Guaranty Consent pursuant to which Pegasus 1Y agreed to increase its Guaranty of the Companys obligations

pursuant to the amended Loan Agreement

In conjunction with the third amendment and as consideration for Pegasus Ivs execution of the Guaranty

Consent the Company amended and restated the Original Guaranty Extension Agreement with Pegasus IV and

entered into the Amended and Restated Guaranty Extension Agreement dated as of March 15 2010 the

Amended Guaranty Extension Agreement Pursuant to the Amended Guaranty Extension Agreement the
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Company agreed that the Fee payable pursuant to the Original Guaranty Extension Agreement would take into

account any borrowings made pursuant to the loan increase The Company further agreed that to the extent

Pegasus IV or its assignees fully exercised the Standby Purchase Option and purchased all of the Units that were

not subscribed for pursuant to the Rights Offering the Company would apply all of the proceeds received upon

exercise of the Standby Purchase Option to reduce the principal amount outstanding pursuant to the amended

Loan Agreement with BMO In addition the Company agreed it would take commercially reasonable efforts to

amend the Guaranty and the amended Loan Agreement such amendment collectively the Fourth Amendment

to reduce the total amount of the Guaranty required by the amended Loan Agreement from $25 million to

$10 million and extend the stated maturity date of the Amended Loan Agreement from August 24 2010 to

the first anniversary of the effective date of the Fourth Amendment the Fourth Amendment Maturity Date
Until the Fourth Amendment has been executed by the parties thereto the Company would not make any

borrowings pursuant to the amended Loan Agreement without the prior consent of Pegasus IV

Based on the completion of the Rights Offering the Company believes that it will have sufficient funds

available to repay
substantial portion of its short-term debt and to use in its operations to fund operating costs

and the required investments in working capital through December 31 2010

Note Acquisitions

During the year ended December 31 2008 the Company completed the following acquisitions Each of the

acquisitions has been accounted for in accordance with ASC Topic 805Business Combinations with the

Company being identified as the acquirer The intangible assets for each of the acquired companies and

businesses were calculated in accordance with ASC Topic 805

Acquisition of LSGBV

On April 22 2008 the Company acquired 100% interest in the common and preferred stock of LSGBV

formerly known as Lighting Partner B.V or LPBV To settle the transaction the Company paid the selling

stockholders of LSGBV cash of $5.0 million and issued 4632000 shares of common stock of the Company The

acquisition of LSGBV provided the Company with more global distribution network and provided an

opportunity to access opportunities to grow its business with number of European-based lighting companies

The Company began consolidating the results of LSGBV on May 2008 The following table summarizes the

LSGBV purchase consideration

Cash purchase price paid to selling stockholders of

LSGBV 5000000

Issue of 4632000 shares of common stock to selling

stockholders of LSGBV 22233600

Transaction fees 1190000

Total purchase price of LSGBV $28423600
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The following table shows the allocation of the net assets of LSGBV on the acquisition date

Current assets

Accounts receivable net 5118296

Inventories net 7037400
Other current assets 446333

Non-current assets

Property and equipment net 940448

Intangible assets 14600000

Goodwill 11332480
Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 2033712
Other current liabilities 704088
Short-term debt 2069177

Long-term debt 2561974
Deferred taxes and other liabilities 3682406

Fair value of net assets acquired $28423600

The Company has assessed that the goodwill acquired pursuant to the acquisition of LSGBV is not

deductible for federal income tax purposes

At December 31 2008 the Company recorded an impairmcnt charge against certain of the intangible assets

acquired

Acquisition of Net Assets of Lamina Lighting Inc

On July 29 2008 wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company the Purchaser acquired under an Asset

Purchase Agreement the Purchase Agreement substantially all of the net assets of Lamina Lighting Inc

Lamina for aggregate consideration of $4.5 million in cash the Cash Payment The Company also had an

obligation to make earn-out payments of up to $10.5 million based on the total sales of the purchased

technologies made over the period from July 29 2008 through December 31 2009 As of December 31 2009

the earn-out period ended and no earn-out payments were required With the acquisition of the net assets of

Lamina the Company acquired additional light engine technology that it believes will further build out its

technology capabilities The Company began consolidating the operations of the business acquired from Lamina

on August 2008

The following table shows the aggregate purchase price of the net assets of Lamina

Total cash payment $4500000

Transaction fees 263383

Total purchase price of Lamina $4763383

F-14



LIGHTING SCIENCE GROUP CORPORATION AN SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

The following table shows the allocation of the net assets acquired from Lamina on the acquisition date

Current assets

Accounts receivable net 382282

Inventories net 1699173

Other current assets 181519

Non-current assets

Property and equipment 1121154

Intangible assets 2445000

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 1065745

Total purchase price of Lamina net assets 4763383

The allocation of the total purchase price for the acquisition of the Lamina net assets to identifiable net

tangible and intangible assets resulted in total negative goodwill of $773000 The Company has recorded the

negative goodwill amount as reduction of the net property and equipment and intangible assets in the purchase

equation above

Note Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Cash accounts receivable note and accounts payable amounts due under the lines of credit promissory

notes including the convertible notes accrued expenses and other current liabilities are carried at book value

amounts which approximate fair value due to the short-term maturity of these instruments

Long-term debt bears interest at variable interest rates and therefore its carrying value approximates fair

value

Note Fair Value Measurements

The Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures Topic of the Financial Accounting Standards Board

FASB Accounting Standards Codification defines fair value as the price at which an asset could be

exchanged in current transaction between knowledgeable willing parties liabilitys fair value is defined as

the amount that would be paid to transfer the liability to new obligor not the amount that would be paid to

settle the liability with the creditor

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value are categorized based upon the level of judgment associated

with the inputs used to measure their fair value Hierarchical levels are directly related to the amount of

subjectivity associated with the inputs to fair valuation of these assets and liabilities and are as follows

Level 1Unadjusted quoted prices that are available in active markets for the identical assets or liabilities

at the measurement date

Level 2Other observable inputs available at the measurement date other than quoted prices included in

Level either directly or indirectly including

Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets

Quoted prices for identical or similar assets in non-active markets
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Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability and

Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by other observable market data

Level 3Unobservable inputs that cannot be corroborated by observable market data and reflect the use of

significant management judgment These values are generally determined using pricing models for which the

assumptions utilize managements estimates of market participant assumptions

The fair value of the interest rate swap used for non-speculative purposes is based on the market value as

reported by ABN AMRO

The Company has applied liability accounting to the warrants issued to certain directors and officers of

predecessor company These warrants have been recorded at fair value using the Black Scholes valuation

method

The following table sets forth by level within the fair value hierarchy the Companys financial assets and

liabilities that were accounted for at fair value on recurring basis as of December 31 2009 according to the

valuation techniques the Company used to determine their fair values

Fair Value Measurement on December 31 2009

Quoted Price in Significant

Active Markets Other Significant

for Identical Observable Unobservable

Assets Inputs Inputs

Level Level Level

Assets

Interest rate swap $21745

$21745

Liabilities

Liabilities under derivative contracts

The following table sets forth by level within the fair value hierarchy the Companys financial assets and

liabilities that were accounted for at fair value on recurring basis as of December 31 2008 according to the

valuation techniques the Company used to determine their fair values

Fair Value Measurement on December 31 2008

Quoted Price in Significant

Active Markets Other Significant

for Identical Observable Unobservable

Assets Inputs Inputs

Level Level Level

Assets

Interest rate swap $9868

$9868

Liabilities

Liabilities under derivative contracts 3654

$3654
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Note Inventories

Inventories are comprised of the following

December 31 December 31
2009 2008

Raw materials and components $13082060 $13342589

Work-in-process 331417 1365431

Finished goods 2493750 2359754

Allowance for obsolete and slow-moving

inventory 7842603 4865000

Inventories net of allowances 8064624 $12202774

On quarterly basis the Company performed review of its inventory for estimated obsolescence or slow-

moving inventory based upon assumptions about future demand and market conditions As result of these

reviews the Company recorded provisions for obsolescence of $4.8 million and $4.5 million for the years ended

December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively with the expense included in operations expenses

Note Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of the following

December 31 December 31
2009 2008

Leasehold improvements 2727334 2668566

Office furniture and equipment 1114804 1090812

Computers and telephone equipment 3381115 3128286

Production and test equipment 2505032 2951185

Tooling and molds 3454626 2941200

Total property and equipment 13182911 12780049

Accumulated depreciation 9891615 9149161

Property and equipment net 3291296 3630888

Depreciation expense was $1.3 million and $1.2 million for the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008

respectively

Note Intangible Assets and Goodwill

Because of the significant decline in the Companys stock price during the fourth quarter of 2008 the

Company tested its goodwill for impairment and its intangible assets for recoverability as of December 31 2008

For goodwill the fair value of the Companys reporting units and the associated goodwill was estimated using

the discounted cash flow method which is based on the future expected cash flows to be generated by the

reporting units discounted to their present values using discount rates ranging from 17.5% to 25% Amortizable

intangible assets whose carrying values were determined to be recoverable from the future undiscounted cash

flows expected to be generated by them were written down to their estimated fair values as of December 31

2008 The estimated fair values were determined under various methodologies under the income approach of

valuation using discount rates comparable to those used to value the Companys goodwill The result of these

valuations were that material impairment charge totaling $53.1 million was recorded as of December 31 2008
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The following table summarizes the total impairment charge recorded by the Company in the fourth quarter

of 2008

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of Lighting Science Group

Corporation $42605552

Technology and patents acquired on the acquisition of Lighting

Science Group Corporation 2419984
Goodwill arising on the acquisition of LSGBV 6159000
Trademarks acquired on the acquisition of LSGBV 796741

Technology and patents acquired on the acquisition of LSGBV .. 322856

Customer relationships acquired on the acquisition of LSGBV 806000

Total impairment charge $53110133

No impairments to goodwill were recorded at September 30 2009 or 2008 as result of the Companys
annual testing in accordance with its accounting policy for goodwill

Intangible assets that have finite lives are being amortized over their useful lives The intangible assets their

original fair values adjusted for the impairment charges in the fourth quarter of 2008 and their useful lives are

detailed below as of December 31 2009

Cost Less Estimated

Impairment Accumulated Net Carrying Remaining Useful

Intangible Asset Charges Amortization Value Life

Technology and intellectual property 5152229 $2574421 2577808 0.5 to 14.5 years

Trademarks 1566910 311428 1255482 3.5 to 18.5 years

Software 2000000 2000000 00 years

Customer relationships 6049000 1525729 4523271 2.5 to 12.5 years

License agreements 7642500 2516325 5126175 8.5 years

Non-competition agreements 300000 300000 0.0 years

Total intangible assets $22710639 $9227903 $13482736

Goodwill 5770245 5770245 Indefinite

The intangible assets their original fair values adjusted for the impairment charges in the fourth quarter of

2008 and their useful lives are detailed below as of December 31 2008

Cost Less Estimated

Impairment Accumulated Net Carrying Remaining Useful

Intangible Asset Charges Amortization Value Life

Technology and intellectual property 5152229 $2013956 3138273 1.5 to 15.5 years

Trademarks 1566910 158922 1407988 4.5 to 19.5 years

Software 2000000 1000000 1000000 0.5 years

Customer relationships 6049000 850994 5198006 35 to 13.5 years

License agreements 7642500 1114762 6527738 9.5 years

Non-competition agreements 300000 119373 180627 1.0 years

Total intangible assets $22710639 $5258007 $17452632

Goodwill 6799962 6799962 Indefinite
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The change in goodwill value between 2009 and 2008 is due to the effects of the change in the foreign

exchange rate Amortization expense was $4.0 million and $3.2 million for the years ended December 31 2009

and 2008 respectively The table below is the estimated amortization expense adjusted for any impairment

charge recorded in the fourth quarter of 2008 for the Companys intangible assets for each of the next five years

and thereafter

2010 2100798

2011 2100478

2012 1821564

2013 1665471

2014 1660448

Thereafter 4133978

$13482736

Note 10 Short-Term Debt

The Company and its subsidiaries had the following balances outstanding under lines of credit and other

short-term debt facilities

Balance Outstanding at

December 31

2009 2008

Facility
USD USD

Fixed-rate ABN AIVIRO Bank revolving line of credit 330137

Fixedrate term note payable to ABN AMRO 1791525 2220278

Variable-rate IFN Finance working capital line 1132229 1876576

Variable-rate Bank of Montreal demand line of credit 15600000 18000000

Fixed-rate promissory notes issued to related parties 32846619 2000000

Fixed-rate promissory notes issued to Phillips Electronics 5000000

Other 29800

Total lines of credit and short-term debt $56400173 $24426991

ABNAMRO Bank

As of December 31 2009 the ABN AMRO revolving line of credit has maximum liability of 200000

and the interest rate on the facility was 6.90% as of both December 31 2009 and 2008 As security for the line of

credit ABN AMRO was given senior security interest in the inventory property and equipment of LSGBV the

Companys European operating subsidiary The interest rate on the ABN AMRO fixed term note payable was

4.65% and 4.15% as of December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively The maturity date for both facilities is

December 15 2010 Further the Company has agreed to reduce the principal amount outstanding on the fixed-

rate term note payable with various monthly payments ranging from 25000 to 200000 per month resulting in

payment in full by December 15 2010

IFN Finance

IFN Finance has senior security interest in all accounts receivable of LSGBV Interest is payable monthly

on this facility The maximum line of credit is 4.0 million and availability is based on 90% of the value of trade

receivable invoices Interest rate was 7.15% at both December 31 2009 and 2008
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Bank of Montreal

On July 25 2008 the Company entered into Loan Authorization Agreement the Loan Agreement with

Bank of Montreal BMO whereby BMO established $20.0 million revolving line of credit for the Company
The Company and BMO subsequently amended the Loan Agreement on July 24 2009 and again on August 24
2009 to extend the scheduled maturity date As amended the Loan Agreement provides for monthly payments of

interest only at the greater of prime plus 0.5% and 7.25% 725% at both December 31 2009 and 2008 and

matures on written demand by BMO but in no event later than August 24 2010 Any outstanding balance under

the Loan Agreement is payable on written demand by BMO provided that the Company will have 14 business

days to make any such payment The Loan Agreement is not secured by any assets of the Company

The Loan Agreement is guaranteed by Pegasus Partners IV L.P Pegasus IV in accordance with

guaranty agreement the Guaranty dated as of July 25 2008 which Guaranty was extended on July 24 2009

and August 24 2009 in conjunction with the amendments to the Loan Agreement Pegasus IV is private equity

fund managed by Pegasus Capital Advisors L.P Pegasus Capital Pegasus Capital is the controlling equity

holder of the Company and beneficially owned approximately 82.5% of the Companys common stock as of

December 31 2009 In connection with the closing of the line of credit the Company paid Pegasus Capital

$100000 pursuant to side letter agreement dated July 25 2008 the Side Letter Agreement to reimburse

Pegasus Capital for the fees and expenses it incurred with respect to the Guaranty and line of credit In addition

the Company agreed to pay on the last day of the Credit Facility Period defined below transaction fee equal

to 1% of the average daily outstanding principal amount and accrued but unpaid interest under the line of

credit during the period beginning on the date the credit facility was established through the date the credit

facility is repaid in full or otherwise discharged the Credit Facility Period multiplied by the quotient equal

to the number of days in the Credit Facility Period divided by 365 days The Company also issued to Pegasus IV

warrant for the purchase of 942857 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $7.00 per share The

warrant has term of five years

On August 24 2009 in conjunction with the extension of the Loan Agreement the Company and Pegasus

IV entered into Guaranty Extension Agreement whereby Pegasus IV agreed to extend its Guaranty through

August 24 2010 in exchange for the Companys agreement to pay Pegasus IV fee the Fee payable upon
the earliest to occur of the Maturity Date the date of termination of the amended Loan Agreement the

date of termination of the Guaranty and change of control of the Company each of and

Fee Payment Date In accordance with the Original Guaranty Extension Agreement if the Fee Payment Date

is the Maturity Date the date of termination of the Loan Agreement or the date of termination of the Guaranty

we must pay Fee the Average Daily Balance Fee equal to 15% on an annualized basis of our average daily

loan balance with BMO If the Fee Payment Date is the date of change of control of the Company we must pay

Fee equal to the greater of Average Daily Balance Fee and 1.0% on an annualized basis of the total

transaction consideration received by the Company upon such change of control During the years ended

December 31 2009 and 2008 the Company recorded guarantee and transaction fee expenses of $1.9 million and

$669000 related to the guarantee of the BMO facility by Pegasus IV As of December 31 2009 and 2008 the

Company had accrued total guaranty fees payable to Pegasus IV of $748000 and $54000 related to the BMO
facility and were included in interest expense

Related Party

As of December 31 2009 the Company had issued an unsecured convertible note to Pegasus IV for $32.8

million with interest accruing at the rate of 14.00% per annum As of December 31 2008 the Company had

issued an unsecured promissory note to Pegasus IV for $2.0 million with interest accruing at the rate of

8.00% per annum
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Phillips Electronics

On August 27 2009 the Company entered into Convertible Note Agreement the Philips Convertible

Note with Koninklijke Philips Electronics N.y Philips Electronics pursuant to which the Company

borrowed $5.0 million from Philips Electronics Interest on the outstanding principal balance under the Philips

Convertible Note accrues at the rate of 14% per annum

Note 11 Convertible Note Issuances

Pegasus IV

On May 15 2009 the Company entered into convertible note agreement the Original Pegasus

Convertible Note with Pegasus IV which provided the Company with approximately $31.6 million

Specifically pursuant to the Original Pegasus Convertible Note the Company borrowed $13.1 million on

May 15 2009 and $18.5 million on May 26 2009 The proceeds of the borrowings on the Original Pegasus

Convertible Note were generally used to pay in full the promissory notes issued to Pegasus IV in December

2008 February 2009 April 2009 and May 2009 together with accrued interest thereon and pay outstanding

principal amounts under the BMO line of credit Effective as of July 31 2009 the Company entered into the First

Amendment to the Convertible Note Agreement pursuant to which the maturity date of the Original Pegasus

Convertible Note was extended

On August 27 2009 the Original Pegasus Convertible Note as amended was terminated and the Company

entered into the New Pegasus Convertible Note with Pegasus IV in the principal amount of $32.8 million which

represented the outstanding principal and interest on the Original Pegasus Convertible Note as of August 27

2009 As with the Original Pegasus Convertible Note interest on the New Pegasus Convertible Note accrued at

the rate of 14%
per annum The outstanding principal and interest was scheduled to mature upon the earlier of

July 31 2010 and the date of the consummation of the Rights Offering The New Pegasus Convertible

Note could not be prepaid and would be immediately due and payable upon the Companys failure to pay any of

its material debts when due As with the Original Pegasus Convertible Note so long as any amounts remained

outstanding under the New Pegasus Convertible Note the Company had to obtain the prior written consent of

Pegasus P1 prior to borrowing more than $5.0 million in the aggregate pursuant to the Companys line of credit

with BMO

Pursuant to the New Pegasus Convertible Note the Company agreed to use commercially reasonable efforts

to conduct the Rights Offering as soon as reasonably practical Similar to the Original Pegasus Convertible Note

the New Pegasus Convertible Note provided that the Rights Offering would consist of the offering of

approximately 13000000 Units of the Companys securities which would exclude the number of Units that

could be acquired pursuant to the New Pegasus Convertible Note and the Philips Convertible Note for $1 .006

per unit with each Unit to consist of one share of newly designated Series Non-Convertible Preferred Stock

and warrant representing the right to purchase one share of the Companys common stock at an exercise price

of $6.00 per share The Company was also required to use commercially reasonable efforts to cause the

Certificate of Designation for the Series Non-Convertible Preferred Stock to be filed with the Delaware

Secretary of State which was completed on September 2009 As with the Original Pegasus Convertible Note

the New Pegasus Convertible Note granted Pegasus IV the right to acquire any units not otherwise subscribed for

pursuant to the terms of the Rights Offering

On March 2010 the Company consummated the Rights Offering and approximately $35.2 million of

principal and interest on the New Pegasus Convertible Note automatically converted into 35017667 Units of the

Companys securities
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Philips Electronics

On August 27 2009 the Company entered into the Philips Convertible Note with Philips pursuant to which

the Company borrowed $5.0 million Interest on the outstanding principal balance under the Philips Convertible

Note accrued at the rate of 14% per annum All principal and interest on the Philips Convertible Note was

scheduled to become due on the earliest of the following three dates such date the Maturity Date July 31

2010 the date of the consummation of the Rights Offering or the first business day immediately following

the date on which the Company notified Philips that Pegasus IV had voluntarily converted the outstanding

principal and interest under the New Pegasus Convertible Note the Notification Date The Philips Convertible

Note could not be prepaid and would be immediately due and payable upon the Companys failure to pay any of

its material debts when due Pursuant to the Philips Convertible Note the Company agreed to conduct the Rights

Offering on the same terms as those set forth above with respect to the New Pegasus Convertible Note with

Pegasus

As result of the Companys consummation of the Rights Offering on March 2010 approximately $5.4

million of principal and interest on the Philips Convertible Note automatically converted into 5330482 Units of

the Companys securities

Note 12 Related Party Transactions

During the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 the Company recorded $4.7 million and $676000 in

combined interest expense guarantee fee expense and transaction fee expense related to Pegasus TVs promissory

notes and guarantee of the BMO facility

In connection with the acquisition of LSGBV in 2008 the Company paid $400000 to an affiliate of Pegasus

Capital for expenses incurred in performing certain due diligence and other activities These costs have been

reflected in the transaction fees associated with the acquisition

Note 13 Income Taxes

The significant components of income before income taxes and the consolidated income tax provision

benefit for the Company are shown in the following table

For the years ended December 31

2009 2008

Loss before taxes

Domestic $41270723 $92269577
Foreign 7279206 4901386

Total $48549929 $97170963

Deferred income tax expense benefit

Federal 1191588 1264436
State

Foreign 1604590 943071

Deferred income tax benefit 413002 2207507

Income tax beiiefit 413002 2207507
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The following table presents reconciliation of the actual income tax expense benefit to the amount

calculated applying the United States Federal statutory tax rate of 34%

For the years ended December 31

2009 2008

Loss before taxes $48549929 $97 170963

Income tax benefit applying United States federal

statutory rate $16506976 $33038127

Permanent differences

Impairment charge 18057445

Other 61791 134060

Increase in valuation allowance 15992522 12 478 941

Rate difference between United States federal

statutory rate and Netherlands statutory rate 577652 355136

Other 537991 194962

Income tax benefit 413002 2207507

At the time of the reverse merger transaction and resulting change in control the Company had accumulated

approximately $75.0 million in tax loss carryforwards As result of the change in control the Company will be

limited in the amount of loss carryforwards that it may apply to its taxable income in any tax year These net

losses expire from 2012 through 2029 To the extent the Company is able to utilize available tax loss

carryforwards that arose from operations in tax years prior to September 26 2003 any benefit realized will be

credited to income tax expense

As of December 31 2009 the Companys 2006 2007 and 2008 federal income tax returns are open to

examination by the Internal Revenue Service Additionally income tax returns filed in the Netherlands for the

years 2008 and 2009 are still open to examination by taxing authorities at that date
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Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of

assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes The

significant components of the Companys deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows

December 31

2009 2008

Deferred tax assets

Net operating loss carryforwards 34994946 22551486

Net operating loss carryforward recorded by foreign

subsidiary 2496279 923988

Stock based compensation 2108925 1186205

Inventories 1627452 729808

Accounts receivable 97304 33434

Accrued liabilities 230410 217441

Total deferred tax assets 41555316 25642362
Less valuation allowance 40500466 24507944

Net deferred tax assets 1054850 1134418

Deferred tax liabilities

Derivatives 96879 96879
Intangible assets 2081078 2414831

Deferred tax liabilities 2177957 2511710

Net deferred tax liabilities 1123107 1377292

At December 31 2009 the Company had operating income tax loss carryforwards available to offset future

income taxes subject to expiration

United States Net The Netherlands

Operating Tax Net Operating

Loss Tax Loss

Year of Expiration Carryforwards Carryforwards

2012 2293432

2016 3695951

2017 6486210
2018 2293432

2019 2293432

2020 2293432
2021 2293432

2022 2293432

2023 2293432
2024 2293432

2025 2293432
2026 2293432
2027 9937230

2028 33456349
2029 36598411

Total $102926310 $10182161
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Note 14 Preferred Stock

Series Preferred Stock

The Company has authorized and issued 2000000 shares of Series Preferred Stock Shares of Series

Preferred Stock are convertible at any time at the option of the holder at conversion price equal to

approximately $5.65 per share of common stock The conversion price is subject to adjustment for subsequent

stock splits stock dividends and similar events and subject to certain anti-dilution adjustments

Each share of Series Preferred Stock is entitled to 3.5 votes for each share of common stock into which it

is convertible Shares of Series Preferred Stock are entitled to liquidation preference over other classes of

capital stock except the 6% Convertible Preferred Stock in which case the Series Preferred Stock is pan

passu The liquidation preference per share is equal to the purchase price of the Series Preferred Stock plus

dividends which accrue at the rate of 6% per annum The liquidation right and preference is applicable in the

event of the liquidation of the Company merger of the Company with or into another entity or the sale of all or

substantially all of the business or operating assets of the Company The holders of at least majority of the

outstanding Series Preferred Stock have the right to purchase up to an aggregate of $10.0 million of the

Companys common stock for cash in one or more transactions at 15% discount to the average closing price of

the Companys common stock for the thirty consecutive trading days immediately preceding the date of the

purchase or purchases

In April 2008 the holder of the Series Preferred Stock exercised its right to purchase additional common

stock of the Company The holder purchased 2083333 shares of common stock of the Company for gross

proceeds of $10.0 million The Company negotiated reduction in the discount to market from 15% to

approximately 5% for the transaction

Series Preferred Stock

On December 31 2008 the Company issued 251739 shares of its Series Preferred stock to settle

outstanding amounts due to two law firms representing the Company The Series Preferred Stock is not

convertible and is senior to the Common Stock and pan passu with the 6% Convertible Preferred Stock and the

Series Preferred Stock of the Company Dividends may be declared and paid on the Series Preferred Stock

as determined by the Board of Directors Each holder of shares of Series Preferred Stock is entitled to 15 votes

per share of Series Preferred Stock held on any matter in which holders of Common Stock may vote Upon the

dissolution liquidation or deemed change of control of the Company or the repurchase of any shares of Series

Preferred Stock holders of Series Preferred Stock would be entitled to liquidation preference in the amount

of the purchase price of the Series Preferred Stock plus an amount accruing at the rate of 8% per annum on the

purchase price

The Company also issued to the holders of the Series Preferred stock warrants to purchase total of

3776078 shares of common stock The warrants are exercisable only following the dissolution winding-up or

change of control of the Company or the repurchase or other acquisition by the Company of all of the Series

Preferred Stock and have an exercise price of $0.85 per share The warrants expire on December 31 2013

Subsequent to December 31 2008 the 251739 shares of Series Preferred stock and the related warrants

were acquired by Pegasus IV from the two law firms
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6% Convertible Preferred Stock

The Company has authorized 2656250 shares of 6% Convertible Preferred Stock and there are 196902

shares issued and outstanding as of both December 31 2009 and 2008 During the years ended December 31
2009 and 2008 and 18750 shares of 6% Convertible Preferred Stock were converted by the holders to

common stock of the Company respectively

The 6% Convertible Preferred Stock ranks ahead of the common stock of the Company upon liquidation of

the Company The 6% Convertible Preferred Stock also ranks ahead of the common stock with respect to the

payment of dividends The 6% Convertible Preferred Stock ranks pan passu with the Series Preferred Stock

and the Series Preferred Stock with respect to liquidation preference and the payment of dividends The

dividend rate on the 6% Convertible Preferred Stock is $3.84 per share per annum 6% effective yield and such

dividends are fully cumulative accruing without interest from the date of original issuance of the 6%
Convertible Preferred Stock through the date of redemption or conversion thereof The Company must redeem

any outstanding 6% Convertible Preferred Stock on May 10 2010

As of December 31 2009 the conversion price of the outstanding 6% Convertible Preferred Stock is $6.00

per common share and the total number of shares of common stock that may be required to be issued by the

Company is 1101690 In conjunction with the issuance of the 6% Convertible Preferred Stock warrants were

issued to the purchasers of the 6% Convertible Preferred Stock to purchase additional shares of common stock

exercisable at the election of the holder As of December 31 2009 226644 warrants were outstanding and the

current exercise price is $6.00 per share also subject to adjustment pursuant to anti-dilution provisions on either

cash or cashless exercise basis The warrants expire on May 10 2010 During the years ended December 31
2009 and 2008 and 5860 warrants were exercised respectively

The embedded conversion feature associated with the 6% Convertible Preferred Stock and the warrants

issued to the 6% Convertible Preferred Stock purchasers have been determined to be derivative instruments

Accordingly the fair value of these derivative instruments has been recorded as liability on the consolidated

balance sheet with the corresponding amount recorded as discount to the 6% Convertible Preferred Stock Such

discount is being accreted from the date of issuance to the redemption date of the 6% Convertible Preferred Stock

and totaled $126000 and $95000 for the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively The derivative

instruments are adjusted for fair value each reporting period

Note 15 Stockholders Equity

As of both December 31 2009 and 2008 722362 Warrants for the purchase of common stock were

outstanding These warrants have an exercise price of $7.00 per share and expiration dates ranging from March

2012 through June 29 2012 During the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 no Warrants were

exercised

Note 16 Equity Based Compensation Plan

Effective September 2005 predecessor company implemented the Lighting Science Group Corporation

2005 Equity-Based Incentive Compensation Plan the 2005 Plan and proposal to implement such plan was

approved at the annual stockholders meeting in August 2005 In April 2008 the Companys board of directors

amended restated and renamed the Amended and Restated Equity-Based Compensation Plan the Amended and

Restated Plan and proposal to approve the Amended and Restated Plan was approved at the annual

stockholders meeting in October 2008 On August 21 2009 the board of directors approved an amendment to

the Amended and Restated Plan that increased the total number of shares of common stock available for
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issuance under the Amended and Restated Plan from 5000000 shares to 20000000 shares all of which may be

granted as incentive stock options and ii provided that individuals may receive awards relating to maximum

of 2500000 shares of common stock per fiscal year instead of maximum of 500000 shares as provided in the

Amended and Restated Plan The board of directors intends to submit the amendment to the Amended and

Restated Plan to the Companys stockholders at its next annual meeting

Awards granted under the 2005 Plan may include incentive stock options which are qualified under

Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code the Code stock options other than incentive stock options which

are not qualified under Section 422 of the Code stock appreciation rights restricted stock phantom stock bonus

stock and awards in lieu of obligations dividend equivalents and other stock-based awards Awards may be

granted to employees members of the Board of Directors and consultants The 2005 Plan is administered by the

Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors Vesting periods and terms for awards are determined by the

plan administrator The exercise price of each stock option or stock appreciation right is equal to or greater than

the market price of the Companys stock on the date of grant and no stock option or stock appreciation right

granted shall have term in excess of ten years

On December 31 2009 and 2008 there were 9356501 and 895667 stock options outstanding respectively

No options were exercised during the
years ended December 31 2009 or 2008 The fair value of the options is

determined by using Black-Scholes pricing model that includes the following variables exercise price of the

instrument fair market value of the underlying stock on date of grant expected life estimated volatility

expected dividend yield and the risk-free interest rate The Company utilized the following assumptions in

estimating the fair value of the options granted under the Plan

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008

Exercise price $0.60- $1.00 4.90

Fair market value of the underlying stock on date of grant $0.60 $0.41 4.90

Expected life 10.0 years 4.0 years

Estimated volatility 75.0% 75.0%

Expected dividend yield 0.0% 0.0%

Risk free rate 2.43% 3.52% 1.99%

Calculated fair value per share $0.28 $0.35 2.77

The Company has estimated volatility of its stock based on the historical volatility of the Companys

common stock and its peers
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summary of all stock option activity for the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 is presented below

Weighted
Average

Weighted Remaining

Average Contractual

Number of Exercise Term
Shares Price Years

Options outstanding at December 31 2007 267667 $7.80

Granted 729000 4.90

Exercised

Forfeited 101000 4.90

Options outstanding at December 31 2008 895667 $5.77 3.6

Granted 8745000 1.00

Exercised

Forfeited 284166 6.05

Options outstanding at December 31 2009 9356501 $1.30

Options exercisable at December 31 2009 355420 2.2

Weighted average
fair value of options granted

during the year ended December 31 2009 $0.28

The aggregate intrinsic value of the options outstanding as of December 31 2009 was $13000 and

represents the total pre-tax intrinsic value that would have been received by the option holders if all of the

in-the-money options were exercised on December 31 2009 The pre-tax intrinsic value is the difference between

the closing price of the Companys common stock on December 31 2009 and the exercise price for each

in-the-money option This value fluctuates with the changes in the price of the Companys common stock

The Company recorded stock option expense of $3.4 million and $2.1 million for the years ended

December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively As of December 31 2009 there was total of $1.9 million of

unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested share-based compensation arrangements granted under the

2005 Plan That cost is expected to be recognized over weighted-average period of 25 years

Restricted Stock Agreements

In August 2007 predecessor company entered into restricted stock agreement with one of its executives

under which it may be required to issue up to 250000 shares of common stock The restricted stock vested as

follows 25% on award date and ii 25% on each anniversary date of the grant The Company valued the

restricted stock grant at $2.7 million being the value of the shares on the day the agreement was completed The

total cost of the restricted stock grant will be recognized in the statement of operations over an estimated period

of 2.5 years In the first quarter of 2009 the executives employment with the Company was terminated and the

125000 unvested shares were forfeited by the executive For the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 the

Company recorded compensation expense related to this restricted stock award of $0 and $386000 respectively

In April 2008 the Company issued restricted stock awards to certain of its management staff for total of

841250 shares of common stock The restricted stock awards will vest as follows 33% of the total awarded

shares shall vest on the first date after the grant date that the Companys Recognized Revenue equals $50

million ii 34% of the awarded shares shall vest on the first date after the grant date that the Companys
Recognized Revenue is greater than $115 million and iii33% of the awarded shares shall vest on the first day

after the grant date that the Companys Recognized Revenue is greater than $150 million In any event all

outstanding restricted stock awards will vest on the third anniversary of the grant date For purposes of the
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vesting schedule Recognized Revenue is defined as the cumulative gross revenue generated by sales of

products that have been delivered to customers of the Company or one of its subsidiaries or ii licensing of the

technology developed by the Company or one of its subsidiaries since January 2008 For the years ended

December 31 2009 and 2008 the Company recorded compensation expense related to these restricted stock

awards of $1.4 million and $663000 respectively

The following table presents the activity of the restricted stock grants made by the Company during the

years ended December 31 2009 and 2008

Non-vested restricted stock

Non-vested restricted stock December 31 2007

Granted

Vested

Cancelled

Non-vested restricted stock December 31 2008

Granted

Vested

Cancelled

Non-vested restricted stock December 31 2009

The fair value of the restricted stock that vested during the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 was $0

and $241000 respectively The Company recorded restricted stock compensation expense of $1.4 million and

$2.6 million for the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively As of December 31 2009 there was

total of $1.9 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to restricted stock granted under the 2005 Plan

That cost is expected to be recognized over weighted-average period of 1.3 years

Note 17 Warrants for the Purchase of Common Stock

At December 31 2009 the Company has issued the following warrants for the purchase of common stock

Warrant Holder

Investors in March 2007

Private Placement

Pegasus IV

Line of Credit Guarantors

6% convertible preferred

stockholders

The Equity Group

ICurie

Officers and Directors

ABM Industries Inc

Total

Reason for Issuance

Private Placement

Warrants

Guaranty of BMO line of

credit

Financing guarantees

Private Placement

Consulting services

Marketing Agreement

Bridge Financing

Marketing services

No of

Common
Shares

722362 7.00

942857 7.00

121375 6.00

6.00

$16.00

6.40

$30.00

8.00

2012

July 25 2013

September 22 2011

through March 31 2012

May 10 2010

February 10 2010

September 13 2011

April 20 2010

March 31 2010

of

shares

187500

841250

62500

125000

841250

55000

173750

722500

Weighted

Average
Grant Date

Fair Value

10.60

4.90

10.60

10.60

4.90

0.75

4.90

4.58

Exercise

Price Expiration Date

March 2012 to June 29

226644

37500

6250

8000

20000

2084988
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At December 31 2009 all warrants shown in the table above are fully vested

Pursuant to the issue of the Series Preferred stock the Company issued to the holders of the Series

Preferred stock warrants to purchase total of 3776078 shares of common stock The warrants are exercisable

only following the dissolution winding-up or change of control of the Company or the repurchase or other

acquisition by the Company of all of the Series Preferred Stock and have an exercise price of $0.85 per share

The warrants will have term of five years from such vesting date

Note 18 International Sales and Revenue Concentrations

For the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 the Company has determined that the United States and

the Netherlands were the only regions from which the Company had in excess of 10% of revenue The following

tables set out the total revenue and total assets of the geographical regions

Years Ended December 31

Revenue by Geographical Region 2009 2008

United States $18270531 $10165476
The Netherlands 10428418 2623873
Other 2677867 7969244

$31376816 $20758593

December 31

Total Assets by Geographical Region 2009 2008

United States $18977612 $39136026

The Netherlands 19478340 9866344
Other 12862 550897

$38468814 $49553267

Note 19 Commitments and Contingencies

Lease Commitments

At December 31 2009 the Company has the following commitments under operating leases for property

and equipment for each of the next five years

Year Amount

2010 900000

2011 785000

2012 479000

2013 52000

2014 36000

Thereafter 30000

$2282000

During the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 the Company incurred rent expense of $1.5 million

and $1.1 million respectively
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Agreements with Contract Manufacturers

The Company currently depends on small number of contract manufacturers to manufacture its products

If any of these contract manufacturers were to terminate their agreements with the Company or fail to provide the

required capacity and quality on timely basis the Company may be unable to manufacture and ship products

until replacement contract manufacturing services could be obtained

Philips Group Litigation

On August 27 2009 the Company LED Holdings LLC LED Holdings LED Effects Pegasus Capital

and Pegasus IV together with Pegasus Capital the Pegasus Group on the one hand entered into that certain

Governing Agreement and Complete Releases the Release Agreement with Philips Philips Electronics North

America Corporation PENAC and Philips Solid-State Lighting Solutions Inc PSSLS and together with

Philips Electronics and PENAC the Philips Group on the other hand As previously disclosed the Company
and the Philips Group had been involved in patent infringement litigation since February 19 2008 the Patent

Litigation

Pursuant to the Release Agreement the parties agreed to dismiss all pending litigation among and between

them Specifically the Company LED Holdings LED Effects and the Pegasus Group on the one hand and the

Philips Group on the other hand agreed to terminate all claims and disputes among them relating to any matter

or occurrence including but not limited to all claims and disputes arising out of or related to the Patent

Litigation and arising out of or related to any agreements or contracts entered into among the parties prior to the

date of the Release Agreement the Prior Agreements Pursuant to the Release Agreement the parties agreed

that certain of the Prior Agreements will remain in full force and effect and that others will be terminated or will

expire in accordance with their terms The Philips Group released the Company LED Holdings LED Effects and

the Pegasus Group from any liability stemming from the Patent Litigation and the Prior Agreements and the

Company LED Holdings LED Effects and the Pegasus Group each released the Philips Group from any liability

relating to the Patent Litigation and the Prior Agreements

In connection with the Release Agreement on August 27 2009 the Company and Philips Lighting B.V

Philips Lighting an affiliate of the entities in the Philips Group entered into Commercial Framework

Agreement pursuant to which the Company and Philips Lighting agreed to buy and sell LED lighting products to

each other Also in connection with the Release Agreement the Company and Philips entered into Patent

License Agreement pursuant to which Philips granted the Company royalty-bearing license to the patents in the

Philips LED-based Luminaires and Retrofit Bulbs licensing program Further in connection with the Release

Agreement Philips has made limited equity investment in the Company pursuant to the Philips Convertible

Note

Other Contingencies

From time to time the Company may become involved in lawsuits or other legal proceedings which arise

in the ordinary course of business However litigation is subject to inherent uncertainties and an adverse result

in these or other matters may arise from time to time that may harm its business Management is not currently

aware of any such legal proceedings or claims that it believes will have material adverse effect on the business

financial condition or operating results
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Note 20 Subsequent Events

Rights Offering

On March 2010 the Company consummated the Rights Offering pursuant to which it offered certain of

its existing security holders 25268193 Units of its securities at $1.006 per Unit with each Unit consisting of one

share of the Companys Series Non-Convertible Preferred Stock and warrant entitling the holder thereof to

purchase one share of common stock for $6.00 per share On the closing date of the Rights Offering the

Company received approximately $303000 for 301268 Units Pursuant to the New Pegasus Convertible Note

the Company previously granted Pegasus IV or its assignees the Standby Purchase Option to acquire any or all of

the Units that were not subscribed for pursuant to the Rights Offering On February 23 2010 the Company
received $2.0 million from Pegasus IV as an advance payment for Units pursuant to the Standby Purchase

Option Notwithstanding this advance payment Pegasus IV or its assignees may also elect to purchase additional

Units pursuant to the Standby Purchase Option until April 18 2010 In total the Standby Purchase Option

provides Pegasus IV the right to purchase approximately 24966925 Units The Company has been informed by

Pegasus lv that Pegasus IV or its assignees currently intend to purchase all of the remaining Units pursuant to

the Standby Purchase Option The Company therefore expects to receive approximately $25.4 million in gross

proceeds in connection with the closing of the Rights Offering excluding the amount of principal and interest

that automatically converted to Units pursuant to the terms of the Pegasus Convertible Note and the Philips

Convertible Note and the exercise of the Standby Purchase Option The proceeds of the Rights Offering are

anticipated to be applied to the re-payment of outstanding principal amounts on the Companys line of credit

with BMO

Amendment to Loan Agreement with BMO

On March 15 2010 the Company entered into third amendment to the Loan Agreement with BMO which

increased the size of its line of credit with BMO from $20 million to $25 million On the same date and in

connection with the third amendment Pegasus IV executed the Guaranty Consent pursuant to which Pegasus IV

agreed to increase its Guaranty of the Companys obligations pursuant to the amended Loan Agreement

In conjunction with the third amendment and as consideration for Pegasus TVs execution of the Guaranty

Consent the Company amended and restated the Original Guaranty Extension Agreement with Pegasus 1V and

entered into the Amended Guaranty Extension Agreement Pursuant to the Amended Guaranty Extension

Agreement the Company agreed that the Fee payable pursuant to the Original Guaranty Extension Agreement

would take into account any borrowings made pursuant to the loan increase The Company further agreed that to

the extent Pegasus IV or its assignees fully exercised the Standby Purchase Option and purchased all of the Units

that were not subscribed for pursuant to the Rights Offering the Company would apply all of the proceeds

received upon exercise of the Standby Purchase Option to reduce the principal amount outstanding pursuant to

the amended Loan Agreement with BMO In addition the Company agreed it would take commercially

reasonable efforts to enter into the Fourth Amendment to reduce the total amount of the Guaranty required by

the amended Loan Agreement from $25 million to $10 million and extend the stated maturity date of the

Amended Loan Agreement from August 24 2010 to the Fourth Amendment Maturity Date Until the Fourth

Amendment has been executed by the parties thereto the Company would not make any borrowings pursuant to

the amended Loan Agreement without the prior consent of Pegasus IV

The Amended Guaranty Extension Agreement amends the definition of Fee Payment Date to provide that

the Fee will also be payable upon the effective date of the Fourth Amendment In addition upon execution of the

Fourth Amendment and as consideration for further extending the Guaranty the Company agreed that it would

pay Pegasus P1 fee the Fourth Amendment Fee payable upon the earliest to occur of the Fourth
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Amendment Maturity Date the date of termination of the amended Loan Agreement as amended pursuant to

the Fourth Amendment the date of termination of the Guaranty and change of control of the Company

each of and Fourth Amendment Fee Payment Date The Fourth Amendment Fee would be

equal to the sum of 10% on an annualized basis beginning on the first calendar day immediately following

the effective date of the Fourth Amendment of the Companys average daily loan balance with BMO plus

ii 10% on an annualized basis of the maximum amount of loans available pursuant to the amended Loan

Agreement as amended pursuant to the Fourth Amendment from the period beginning on the 121st day after the

effective date of the Fourth Amendment and ending on the Fourth Amendment Fee Payment Date this portion

ii of the Fourth Amendment Fee is referred to as the Maximum Loan Fee Pegasus IV and the Company

agreed that if the Guaranty were terminated on or before the 120th day after the effective date of the Fourth

Amendment the Maximum Loan Fee would be equal to $0.00

The Amended Guaranty Extension Agreement further provides that the Company would issue Units to

Pegasus IV in satisfaction of the Fee and the Fourth Amendment Fee if applicable Pegasus IV would be

entitled to receive that number of Units equal to one Unit for each $1 .006 of the Fee or the Fourth Amendment

Fee as applicable Such Units would be in addition to any Units issued pursuant to the Rights Offering or the

Standby Purchase Option
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